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Chairman’s Statement
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On behalf of the Board of Directors, | have pleasure in
presenting the audited consolidated results of Golden
Resources Development International Limited (“the
Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) for the year
ended 31st March, 2008.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

For the year under review, the Group remained focus on its
core rice business. Hong Kong rice business was challenging.
The raw rice costs have been rising rapidly since late 2007.
Such increase in rice costs has exerted pressure on the
operation of rice business. However, the Group managed to
implement effective procurement and cost control measures
to alleviate the impact of the cost increase so that the
profitability of its rice business was moderately maintained.

The Group is of the view that Vietnam has offered tremendous
business opportunities where we can diversify our business
there to bring in new income streams to the Group in the long
term. During the year under review, the Group branched out
into Vietnam that we referred GR Vietnam Holdings Ltd (“GR
Vietnam"), (SEHK: 0139), to the Vietnam partner to participate
in the operation of convenience store, the provision of
logistics services and the investment in port infrastructure. To
reap the benefit from the favourable returns of these projects,
the Group subscribed shares in GR Vietnam, amounting to
HK$170 million. The subscription was partly financed by
the issuance of convertible notes to the extent of HK$85.5
million. In addition, the Group also entered into agreements to
participate in the development of three infrastructure projects
in Vietnam. We are confident that these Vietnam projects will
bring in favourable returns to the Group and add value to the
shareholders in the long term.

The Group is committed to food safety and quality assurance.
The Group has awarded the "HACCP” and “ISO 9001" food
safety and monitoring certifications, which are the strictest
food safety system in the industry. The Group has obtained
the “Q-Mark"” award from the Federation of Hong Kong
Industries for over sixteen years. The Group is also committed
to corporate social responsibilities. We have received the
“Caring Company Logo"” award from the Hong Kong Council
of Social Service for the past four consecutive years. With
regard to environmental protection, the Group has used the
degradable plastic material made rice bag to package our rice,
which is the first of its kind in the rice industry.
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Chairman’s Statement
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The Group’'s liquidity remains strong and healthy. As at the
balance sheet date, our net cash position was approximately
HK$221,000,000. For the year under review, our good
quality investment portfolio contributed favourably to the
Group's performance. The Group’s profit for the year was
HK$63,116,000 before sharing the results of an investment,
GR Vietnam. However, the profit of the Group was significantly
affected by the loss results of GR Vietnam that after sharing
the loss of this associate to the extent of HK$54,394,000,
the Group’s net profit attributable to shareholders for the year
became HK$8,722,000. The loss incurred by GR Vietnam for
the year ended 31st March, 2008 was mainly attributed to
the unrealized marked-to-market loss on the financial assets
caused by the volatility of the investment markets. We believe
that such financial assets held by GR Vietnam will deliver
satisfactory returns in the long term.

We are deeply saddened by the loss of Mr. David LAM Kwing
Chan, our former Chairman, who passed away in June 2008.
Mr. David LAM Kwing Chan was regarded as the pioneer in
the rice industry and made invaluable contributions to the
Group. The Board would like to express our gratitude to Mr.
David LAM Kwing Chan for his great contributions to the
Group.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors have resolved to recommend payment of a final
dividend of 1.5 cents per share (2007: 1.5 cents per share)
for the year ended 31st March, 2008 to shareholders on
the Register of Members of the Company on Tuesday, 26th
August, 2008. Together with the interim dividend of 1.25
cents per share paid on Friday, 11th January, 2008, the total
dividends for the year will be 2.75 cents per share (2007: 2.75
cents per share).

Subject to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting, the dividend warrants will be
dispatched to shareholders on or about Tuesday, 2nd
September, 2008.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 20th August, 2008 to Tuesday, 26th August,
2008, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
shares will be effected.

In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend and be
eligible to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company, all transfers of shares accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s Share Registrars in Hong Kong, Tricor Standard
Limited, 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:00 p.m. on
Tuesday, 19th August, 2008.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SHARES
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed
shares during the year.

On behalf of the Board

Alvin LAM Kwing Wai
Chairman
Hong Kong, 15th July , 2008
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Company Background
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Established in 1946, the Golden Resources Group was proud
to achieve listing on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited in 1991. As an innovative pioneer in the local rice
industry, the Group can assert itself as the sole entity to have
established a complete rice-processing plant in Hong Kong,
one of the most sophisticated and advanced rice production
facilities available. With over decades of development, the
Group has claimed a preeminent position, the envy of all in
its field. The Group has made its way to the forefront of this
industry with a vast spectrum of highly reputable brands
including Golden Elephant, Kangaroo and Cherry Blossom,
to name but a few. At the inception of this new century,
the Group will continue to capitalize on its highly regarded
logistics system and distribution network, and endeavor to
set the pace in the retail and institutional markets, in offering
products and services of uncompromising and unparalleled
excellence to diverse markets across the globe.

Visit www.rice.com.hk to share the proud heritage of Golden
Resources Group.

6 Golden Resources Annual Report
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Corporate Governance Report
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The Company is committed to maintaining good corporate
governance standard and procedures to safeguard the
interests of all shareholders and to enhance accountability and
transparency.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company adopted all the code provisions in the Code of
Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) as its own code on corporate
governance practices. The Company has complied with the
Code throughout the financial year ended 31st March, 2008
with the exception of code provision A.4.1 of the Code
stipulates that non-executive directors should be appointed
for a specific term, subject to re-election. None of the existing
independent non-executive directors of the Company is
appointed for a specific term. However, in accordance with
the Company's Bye-Laws, at each annual general meeting,
one-third of the directors shall retire from office by rotation
and become eligible for re-election. As such, the Company
considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure
that the Company’s corporate governance practices are no
less exacting than those in the Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its
own code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
directors. All directors have confirmed, following specific
enquiry by the Company, that they fully complied with the
required standard as set out in the Model Code throughout the
financial year ended 31st March, 2008.

THE BOARD

Composition

The Board currently comprises seven Directors including four
executive directors and three independent non-executive
directors. The independent non-executive directors possess
appropriate academic and professional qualifications or related
financial management expertise and have brought a wide
range of business and financial experience and independent
judgement to the Board.
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Mr. David LAM Kwing Chan, the former Chairman, passed
away on 12th June, 2008. Mr. Alvin LAM Kwing Wai,
executive director and Managing Director of the Company, has
been elected as the Chairman of the Board since 24th June,
2008 to replace Mr. David LAM Kwing Chan.

The composition of the Board of the Company for the year
ended 31st March, 2008 and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. David LAM Kwing Chan (former Chairman)
(passed away on 12th June, 2008)

Mr. Alvin LAM Kwing Wai (Chairman and Managing Director)
(elected as Chairman on 24th June, 2008)

Madam Rosita YUEN LAM Kit Woo
Mr. Laurent LAM Kwing Chee
Mr. TSANG Siu Hung

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Leo CHAN Fai Yue

Mr. John WONG Yik Chung

Mr. Richard LAU Siu Sun

Mr. Alvin LAM Kwing Wai, Chairman and Managing Director
of the Company, is the brother of late Mr. David LAM Kwing
Chan, the former Chairman, Madam Rosita YUEN LAM Kit
Woo and Mr. Laurent LAM Kwing Chee, executive directors
of the Company. The biographical details and relationships
among members of the Board are set out on pages 20 to
22 of this annual report. Save as disclosed above and in the
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
Staff” section of this Annual Report, none of the Directors
of the Company has any financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with one another.

During the year ended 31st March, 2008, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
directors with at least one independent non-executive
director possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise.
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The Company has received written annual confirmation
from all its independent non-executive directors of their
independence pursuant to the requirements of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all independent non-
executive directors to be independent in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

Function

The Board sets the Group’s overall objectives and strategies,
monitors and evaluates its operating and financial performance
and reviews the corporate governance standard of the
Company. It also decides on matters such as annual and
interim results, major transactions, director appointments
or re-appointments, and dividend and accounting policies.
The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
implementing its business strategies and managing the daily
operations of the Group’s businesses to the Managing Director
and the senior management.

The Board held four regular Board meetings at approximately
quarterly interval during the year ended 31st March, 2008.
Additional board meetings were held when necessary.
Notices of at least 14 days accompanying with agenda for
regular board meetings were given to all of the directors.
The directors have been provided in a timely manner with
appropriate information in order to enable them to discharge
their duties and responsibilities. The regular board meetings
have been participated by the directors either in person or
by way of telephone conference from time to time when
necessary. Minutes of full board meetings and meetings of
board committee are properly kept and all directors have
access to board papers and the related materials.
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Details of individual attendance of directors are set out in the
table below:

Number of
Name of Director Attendance
Executive Directors:
Mr. David LAM Kwing Chan (former Chairman) 4/4
(passed away on
12th June, 2008)

Mr. Alvin LAM Kwing Wai (Chairman and 4/4
Managing Director)

Madam Rosita YUEN LAM Kit Woo 4/4

Mr. Laurent LAM Kwing Chee 4/4

Mr. TSANG Siu Hung 4/4

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Leo CHAN Fai Yue 4/4
Mr. John WONG Yik Chung 4/4
Mr. Richard LAU Siu Sun 4/4

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

During the year, the Chairman and the Managing Director of
the Company are Mr. David LAM Kwing Chan and Mr. Alvin
LAM Kwing Wai respectively. The roles of the Chairman and
the Managing Director are segregated and assumed by two
separate individuals to strike a balance of power and authority
so that the job responsibilities are not concentrated on any
one individual. The Chairman of the Board is responsible for
the leadership and effective running of the Board, while the
Managing Director is delegated with the authorities to manage
the business of the Group in all aspects effectively. Mr. David
LAM Kwing Chan, the former Chairman, passed away on 12th
June, 2008. Mr. Alvin LAM Kwing Wai, executive director and
Managing Director of the Company, has been elected as the
Chairman of the Board since 24th June, 2008 to replace Mr.
David LAM Kwing Chan.
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According to the code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles
of a Chairman and a Managing Director should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. Given
Mr. Alvin LAM Kwing Wai has had extensive experience
in the business of the Group, particularly in soliciting for
possible new business opportunities and deducing the overall
strategic plan for the future development of the Company,
the directors consider that it would benefit the Company if
Mr. Alvin LAM Kwing Wai is also in charge of overseeing the
Company's operations as its Chairman. The Board considers
that this structure will not impair the balance of power and
authority between the Board and the management of the
Group. The Board will regularly review the effectiveness of
this arrangement.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Under code provision A.4.1 of the Code, non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to
re-election. None of the existing independent non-executive
directors of the Company is appointed for a specific term,
which constitutes a deviation from code provision A.4.1 of the
Code. However, all of the independent non-executive directors
are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the
Company's Bye-Laws. As such, the Company considers that
sufficient measures are in place to ensure that the corporate
governance practices of the Company are no less exacting
than those of the Code.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on
12th April, 2005 with specific written terms of reference in
accordance with the requirement of the Stock Exchange which
deal clearly with its authority and duties.

The members of the remuneration committee for the year
ended 31st March, 2008 comprise four members, of which
three are independent non-executive directors, Mr. Leo
CHAN Fai Yue (chairman of remuneration committee), Mr.
John WONG Yik Chung, Mr. Richard LAU Siu Sun and one is
executive director, Mr. Alvin LAM Kwing Wai.
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The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include:

o to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company's policy and structure for all remuneration of
directors and senior management of the Group;

o to review and approve performance-based remuneration;

o to determine the specific remuneration packages of all
executive directors and senior management and to make
recommendation to the Board of the remuneration of
non-executive directors;

o to review and approve the compensation payable to
executive directors and senior management and the
compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or
removal of directors for misconduct; and

o to ensure that no director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee held two meeting during the
year ended 31st March, 2008 to discuss remuneration related
matters. The individual attendance of each member was as
follows:

Number of

Name of Director Attendance

Mr. Leo CHAN Fai Yue 2/2
(Chairman of the remuneration committee)

Mr. Alvin LAM Kwing Wai 2/2

Mr. John WONG Yik Chung 2/2

Mr. Richard LAU Siu Sun 2/2

During the year ended 31st March, 2008, the summary of
work performed by the Remuneration Committee was as
follows:

o reviewed the remuneration policy for 2007/2008;

° reviewed and updated the existing Director’s fee; and

o reviewed the remuneration of executive directors and the
independent non-executive directors.
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has not established a nomination committee.
The Board is empowered under the Company's Bye-Laws
to appoint any person as a director either to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the Board. Qualified candidates
will be proposed to the Board for consideration and the
selection criteria are mainly based on the assessment of their
professional qualifications and experience. The Board selects
and recommends candidates for directorship having regard to
the balance of skills and experience appropriate to the Group’s
business.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31st March, 2008, the total audit fee
of the Group amounted to approximately HK$351,000. Non-
audit service fee for the year amounted to approximately
HK$148,000.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee on 10th
August, 1999 with specific written terms of reference in
accordance with the requirement of the Stock Exchange which
deal clearly with its authority and duties.

The members of the Audit Committee for the year ended
31st March, 2008 comprise three independent non-executive
directors, Mr. John WONG Yik Chung (chairman of audit
committee), Mr. Leo CHAN Fai Yue, and Mr. Richard LAU Siu
Sun.

The Audit Committee’s primary functions include:

° to recommend to the Board on the appointment, terms
of engagement of the external auditors;

° to review and monitor the appropriateness of accounting
policy, accounting practices, financial reporting and
disclosure and the application of judgement and
estimates related thereto;

° to review the Company’s annual and interim reports and
any opinion expressed by the external auditors;
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o to review any related party transactions and connected
party transactions for compliance with the requirements
of the Listing Rules and for reasonableness and fairness
to the Company and its shareholders;

° to review with the external auditors issues raised in the
external auditors’ management letter, queries or similar
communications;

o to monitor the external auditors’ independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards; and

o to review the Group's financial controls, internal control
and risk management systems.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year
ended 31st March, 2008. The attendance of each member is
set out as follows:

Number of

Name of Director Attendance

Mr. John WONG Yik Chung 2/2
(Chairman of the audit committee)

Mr. Leo CHAN Fai Yue 2/2

Mr. Richard LAU Siu Sun 2/2

During the year ended 31st March, 2008, the summary of
work performed by the Audit Committee was as follows:

o review of the financial statement for the year ended
31st March, 2007 and for the six months ended 30th
September, 2007,

° review and discussion of the audit findings with the
auditors and review of the annual result announcement;

o review and consideration of various accounting issues
and new standards and their financial impact; and

° consideration of the audit fee and audit work for the year.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR PREPARING THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation
of accounts for each financial period with a view to ensuring
such accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group and of the results and cash flow for that period.
The Company's accounts are prepared in accordance with
all relevant statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Directors are responsible for ensuring that
appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently; and that judgement and estimates made are
prudent and reasonable.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is
set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 36 to 37
of this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound
and effective internal control system of the Group. The
Group’s internal control system includes a well defined
management structure with limits of authority which is
designed for the achievement of business objectives, so as
to safeguard assets against unauthorized use or disposition,
to ensure proper maintenance of books and records for the
provision of reliable financial information for internal use or
publication, and to ensure compliance with relevant legislation
and regulations.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company uses a range of communication tools to ensure
its shareholders are kept well informed of key business
imperatives. These include annual general meeting, annual
report, interim report, various notices, announcements and
circulars.

Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on
each substantial separate issue, including the election of
individual directors.
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The annual general meeting of the Company provides a useful
forum for shareholders to exchange views with the Board. The
Directors, chairman of the audit and remuneration committees
and external auditors are also available at the annual general
meeting to address shareholders’ queries.

To promote effective communication, the Company also
maintains a website at www.grdil.com, where information
and updates on the Company’s business developments and
operations, financial information and other information are
posted.

Details of the poll voting procedures and rights of shareholders
to demand a poll are included in the Company's circulars
convening a general meeting. Whenever voting by way of
a poll is required, the detailed procedures for conducting
a poll will be explained at the meeting. The results on any
voting conducted by poll will be published on the business
day following the shareholders’ meeting and posted on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company and
its subsidiaries are engaged in the business of sourcing,
importing, wholesaling, processing, packaging, marketing and
distribution of rice, securities investment, property investment
and investment holding.

Analyses of the Group's turnover and segment results by
business segment and geographical segment are set out in
note 6 to the financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries and of the
Group’s principal associates at 31st March, 2008 are set out in
notes 14 and 15 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2008
and the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 38 to
114.

An interim dividend of 1.25 cents per share amounting to
approximately HK$17,586,000 was paid to the shareholders
during the year. The Directors now recommend the payment
of a final dividend of 1.5 cents per share to the shareholders
on the Register of Members on Tuesday, 26th August, 2008
amounting to approximately HK$21,104,000.

SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 27 to the financial
statements and the consolidated statement of changes in
equity respectively.
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GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the past five financial years is set out on page
116 of the annual report.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group revalued all of its investment properties at 31st
March, 2008. The revaluation surplus of HK$4,410,000 has
been credited to the consolidated income statement.

Details of movements during the year in the investment
properties of the Group are set out in note 13 to the financial
statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year in the property, plant
and equipment of the Group are set out in note 12 to the
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the share capital
of the Company are set out in note 26 to the financial
statements.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

Details of convertible notes issued during the year are
disclosed in note 25 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’'s Bye-Laws or the law of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. David LAM Kwing Chan (former Chairman) (passed away
on 12th June, 2008)

Mr. Alvin LAM Kwing Wai (Chairman and Managing Director)
(elected as Chairman on 24th June, 2008)

Madam Rosita YUEN LAM Kit Woo
Mr. Laurent LAM Kwing Chee
Mr. TSANG Siu Hung

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Leo CHAN Fai Yue

Mr. John WONG Yik Chung

Mr. Richard LAU Siu Sun

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws, Madam Rosita
YUEN LAM Kit Woo, Mr. TSANG Siu Hung and Mr. John
WONG Yik Chung shall retire by rotation and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election.

The term of office of each Director, including the independent
non-executive directors, is the period up to his retirement by
rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws.

Each of the independent non-executive directors confirmed his
independence with the Company pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considered all the independent
non-executive directors are independent.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

Messrs. David LAM Kwing Chan (the former Chairman, passed
away on 12th June, 2008) and Alvin LAM Kwing Wai had
entered into service contracts with the Company for an initial
term of three years commencing on 1st January, 1991. These
service contracts remain effective after the expiry date unless
terminated by either party with six months’ notice in writing.
As at 31st March, 2008, none of these service contracts had
been terminated by either party.

No Director being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT STAFF

1.

Directors

The biographical details of the Directors of the Company
are as follows:

Alvin LAM Kwing Wai, aged 63, Chairman and Managing
Director of the Company. Mr. Lam joined the Group
in 1970 after he obtained his Master of Business
Administration degree from the University of California,
Berkerly, U.S.A. He has extensive experience in
financial management and investment planning. Mr.
Lam is currently an executive director and Chairman
of Prosperity Investment Holdings Limited, a company
incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability and the
shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Lam is also an independent non-executive
director of Regal Portfolio Management Limited whom
is the manager of Regal Real Estate Investment Trust,
a Hong Kong collective investment scheme authorized
under section 104 of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong) and
the units of which are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Lam is the brother of Madam Rosita
YUEN LAM Kit Woo and Mr. Laurent LAM Kwing Chee.

Rosita YUEN LAM Kit Woo, aged 62, Executive Director
and Treasurer of the Company. She graduated from the
University of California, Los Angeles, U.S.A. with a B.A.
in Economics and joined the Group in 1991. Madam Yuen
has extensive experience in banking and trading. Madam
Yuen is the sister of Mr. Alvin LAM Kwing Wai and Mr.
Laurent LAM Kwing Chee.

Laurent LAM Kwing Chee, aged 61, Executive Director
of the Company. He graduated from the Eastern lllinois
University, U.S.A. with a bachelor degree in Economics
and joined the Group in 1991. Mr. Lam has extensive
experience in property development and investment.
Mr. Lam is the brother of Mr. Alvin LAM Kwing Wai and
Madam Rosita YUEN LAM Kit Woo.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR EENESEEEASZ@ALRY
MANAGEMENT STAFF (Continued) & (&)

1.

Directors (Continued)

TSANG Siu Hung, aged 53, Executive Director and
Financial Controller of the Company. He holds a bachelor
degree in Accountancy and is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He joined the Group in 1985. Mr. Tsang has extensive
professional experience in finance, accounting and
auditing fields.

Leo CHAN Fai Yue, aged 67, was appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company
in 1999. Mr. Chan has over 20 years of invaluable
experience in Hong Kong stock market and manufacturing
industry. During his early years in Japan, he was exposed
to the trading and finance field. He is an independent
non-executive director of Prosperity Investment Holdings
Limited and Datronix Holdings Limited, both of which
are listed companies in Hong Kong, and a director of a
paint manufacturing company in Bangkok. Mr. Chan is a
member of The Hong Kong Institution of Directors.

John WONG Yik Chung, aged 41, was appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company
in 2004. He is also an independent non-executive
director of Ecogreen Fine Chemicals Group Limited,
CDW Holdings Limited and General Steel Holdings
Inc, companies listed in Hong Kong, Singapore and
The United States of America respectively. He is a
professional accountant by training with more than 18
years of experience in auditing and corporate finance
work, with extensive exposure to the business enterprise
in the People’s Republic of the China (“PRC"). Mr. Wong
is currently the Director of Vantage Consulting Group,
a firm providing a variety of professional outsourcing
solutions to an international client base investing in PRC.
Mr. Wong graduated from the University of Melbourne.
He is a fellow member of the Australian Society of
Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. He also obtained a PRC
Certificate of Independent Directorship in 2002.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT STAFF (Continued)

1.

Directors (Continued)

Richard LAU Siu Sun, aged 61, was appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company
in 2006. Mr. Lau has over 35 years of commercial
banking experience. Mr. Lau previously held a managerial
position in a local reputable bank and has retired from
the bank since early August 2006. Mr. Lau has extensive
experience in banking and finance field.

Senior Management
The four Directors of the Company holding executive
offices above are directly responsible for the various

businesses of the Group. They are regarded as the
members of the senior management of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE EENROEEBEROEE 2R

SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES BEXRE

As at 31st March, 2008, the interests and short positions of NR-ZBEENEF=ZF=+—"HH 8%

the directors and their associates in the shares and underlying PEEA - YN YN #= X e 1]

shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations HEEZE(EEREBALHEEMN(E

(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures = REAE RN ) EXVEBM) 2R &

Ordinance (“SFQO")) as recorded in the register required to be HEROTEE B AREE S L H

kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to EIE&PEIIEAEFEE 252 MMA -

the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model AR 8 B P s 2 =Z ST BB A

Code contained in the Listing Rules, were as follows: SRANTREBETHZEZIZ R XA D
™

Long positions e

(a) Ordinary shares of the Company (a) ZEREZEZEHER

Number of ordinary shares beneficially held in the Company

BEERAELXQRAEERKRE
Approximate
percentage
of the issued
share capital
Personal Family Corporate Total of the
Name of director interests interests interests interests Company
KARZEER
TRA 28
E=£H BNz XEES NEEE RSB WEDL
Mr. David LAM Kwing 7,935,000 = = 7,935,000 0.56%
Chan (Note 1)
MR ST (FaE 1)
Mr. Alvin LAM Kwing Wai 17,500,000 6,000,000 68,957,000 92,457,000 6.57%
WA S & (Note Hfit 2)
Notes: Bet
1. Mr. David LAM Kwing Chan, former Chairman, passed 1. EMRRABEENR_"ZTZEN
away on 12th June, 2008. i/\ﬂ T+ BEH o
2. These 92,457,000 shares are held by Mr. Alvin LAM 2. Il % 92,457000 A% & 19 B A&
Kwing Wai, a director of the Company, as beneficial owner NEEEMNHELLERES &
in respect of 17,500,000 shares, as family interests in D/{Eﬁqj\}fg*ﬁ}\%ﬁwwo 000
respect of 6,000,000 shares and as interests in controlled R AREEZREA
corporation in respect of 68,957,000 shares. 6,000,000 A% A% 12 Kz bA #252 B A

7] ¥ = ¥ A 68,957,000 A% A%
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

Long positions (Continued)
(b) Non-voting deferred shares of Golden Resources

Development Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company

EERROREEAROEE 2 &R
KRR (E)

HR(E)
(b) FEREAZZEHERAZIFKFE
BER A 2R FZRELR (7

Number of non-voting
deferred shares

Name of director Capacity beneficially held
ERBECERERER

EEEE 54 v gE|

Mr. David LAM Kwing Chan (Note) Beneficial owner 260,000

MR ST &£ (HTaE) EmEAA

Mr. Alvin LAM Kwing Wai Beneficial owner 260,000

WRE & EmEEAA

Note: Mr. David LAM Kwing Chan, former Chairman, passed
away on 12th June, 2008.

(c) Non-voting deferred shares of Yuen Loong &

Bat . AIEREMAREENR_-FF
NEFRA+Z Bt -

(c) FARBZ2ZEHEBAARETE

Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the RARAEZEREEELRG
Company
Number of non-voting
deferred shares
Name of director Capacity beneficially held
ERRACERREERL
Ex=EW &4 R5 8B
Mr. David LAM Kwing Chan (Note) Beneficial owner 13,000
MM 5 & (H172) BEREAA
Mr. Alvin LAM Kwing Wai Beneficial owner 13,000
MAE A& BEmBERA

Note: Mr. David LAM Kwing Chan, former Chairman, passed
away on 12th June, 2008.

Hat . AIERFEMMREER_—FZ
NEFRA+Z Bt -
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

Long positions (Continued)

(d) Ordinary shares of Wellight Development Limited, an
associate of the Company

EERkROREERO R 2 &R
KRR (E)

(&)
(d) #& 2 8] Z B & 22 &l Wellight

Development Limited Z & &
BB 17

Number of ordinary
shares held through

Name of director Capacity corporation
EBARBEZEBR

EEZEB g4 RHEE
Mr. Laurent LAM Kwing Chee Interest in controlled 300
corporation (Note B1zF)

R ST

Note: These shares are held by L.K.C. Company Limited, a
company wholly-owned by Mr. Laurent LAM Kwing
Chee.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st March, 2008, none of
the directors nor their associates of the Company had or was
deemed to have any interest or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as recorded in the register that required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code contained in the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or
any other body corporate and neither the directors nor the
chief executive, nor any of their spouses or children under the
age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the securities of the
Company.

g NI o

HieE - WEBROGBEMRMETEEZE
%A 2 AR L.K.C. Company
Limited % °

R EXHBEEN RZTTNF=
A=1t—8 ARAREEFNMHE
féR ) % 352 {6 M 3% 3 2 & AC AT i 8%
IR AR R R R TR B BT AR AP
HoRETRENEG  ARAEERH
WEZBMBEATHRERF TR RN
AR B SCE AT ] AR B ORI 2 B4 Sk AR
R A T AERSORE -

ESRERD ZEF

AR RSB 2 AR E R
BELRTIEARE  EARAE
FABBAKR AL E AR EAE
BzBRONEEETES TaE
¥ IREH EARSIEEN
TABATFRMERERAIRBALR
AIE % 2 (EHREF -




Report of the Directors
HEHGREE

MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS

On 2nd October, 2007, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into a subscription agreement with 139
Holdings Limited, a company listed in Hong Kong and
subsequently renamed as GR Vietnam Holdings Limited
("GR Vietnam”), to subscribe for 680,000,000 shares
(“Subscription”) in GR Vietnam at a cash consideration of
HK$170,000,000. Completion of the Subscription took place
on 21st November, 2007. The Subscription represented
approximately 24.09% interest in the enlarged issued share
capital of GR Vietnam at the completion date. The cash
consideration of HK$170,000,000 was funded partly by the
net proceeds from the placing of unlisted convertible notes
by the Company and partly by the internal resources of the
Group.

On 8th October, 2007, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with an independent third party for the placing
of convertible notes (“Placing”) in cash to the extent of
HK$85,500,000 (the “Notes”). Pursuant to the placing
agreement, the Notes were placed to independent third
parties by the end of October 2007. The Notes bear interest
at 4% per annum and will mature on 30th October, 2010.
The initial conversion price is HK$0.90 per share, subject
to adjustments and provided that the conversion price shall
not be less than the par value of a Share. The holders of the
Notes (the “Holders"”) are not entitled to vote at any meetings
of the Company. The exercise of the conversion rights by
the Holders shall be subject to the consent in writing of the
Company. The net proceeds from the Placing were used to
finance the Subscription in GR Vietnam.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Details of the related party transactions entered into by the

Group during the year are set out in note 32 to the financial
statements.

=

EAXRS

R-ZBEELE+A-H ARFIZ—
HE2ENB AR 139 RER A A
(—ERBB LM 2 RARENEE S %
AUEERBR AR ([ BEZER])) T
MR - LARSMKE 170,000,000
78 7T 52 B 8 B 72 iR 2 680,000,000 fi%
BH(RE]) REEER=ZZT
tF+—A=Z+—HBHEK - RES
EHRERNBEERRENB Z&E
ANEBEITIRAL24.09% 2 HEX ° %
170,000,000 B THIIR S RME - 3103
CHARAREIE LT A BREERR
SREFEBENRINESHAEER
AEBEIRBEAT o

R-ZFTLF+ANE - ARFEB
ME=ZDAUEE RS UARSEE
73 813Z 85,500,000 B T ([ELE 1) Z /]
BREBE(RR]) - RELEHH
ZEBER _TTLF+HARRET
BIYE=T] - ZZBZFNEBA%
YR —_F—FF+A=1THIIH-
MEHRBERER0IE T(A T
) EABREISERBOEE R
BRAAISBADEERARAZ
EARELRE - EBERAATER
BRAKARAREHRE - KEZH
GRAFRCRIERBREERZE

S
i e

BEALIRS

AEBEEBEATRAFERETR
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group rented a property owned by a
landlord in which the Director of the Company, Mr. Alvin LAM
Kwing Wai, had a beneficial interest. Total rental expenses
incurred for the year amounted to HK$960,000.

Save as disclosed above, in the opinion of the Directors, there
were no other transactions which need to be disclosed as
connected transactions in accordance with the requirements
of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st March, 2008, the register of substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO showed that, the Company had been notified
of the following substantial shareholders’ interest, being 5%
or more of the Company's issued share capital:

Number of shares

BEXS

RAFER AKEERARBDES
HEREEEAR -—EHAHEEERE
BmZYE - AFREZHEEXHBER
960,000 & 7T °

BREXFEEEN  EERA - HE
HA A 5B RIE £ R R (Ef &

EEREREHN L 2ES

ARRHEERNERBRET IR
REE RGN W FEREFE
MEAUMARREZHA (THER
KR EREEZAH

FERR

R-BZENF=ZA=+—8 ' FT27A
REBSMAEHRIIFIBHREFEEZ
TERREM MRS THEEHRR
HMERRBEREF 5% RIALARRFZ
BEBITRN

Approximate
percentage of the
issued share capital

Name of shareholder held of the Company

(Note BizE 1) AR ZEBRITREZ
BRERERB BERGEE BHABE D
Yuen Loong International Limited (“Yuen Loong") 485,052,026 34.48% (Note H1£ 2)
Chelsey Developments Ltd. (“Chelsey”) 236,940,000 16.84% (Note fzt 2)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

Notes:
1. These shares represent long position.

2. Mr. David LAM Kwing Chan, a former director of the Company,
passed away on 12th June, 2008, is interested in approximately
24% of the issued share capital of each of Yuen Loong and
Chelsey. Mr. Alvin LAM Kwing Wai, a director of the Company,
is a beneficiary of a discretionary trust which is interested
in approximately 24% of the issued share capital of each of
Yuen Loong and Chelsey. Mr. Laurent LAM Kwing Chee, a
director of the Company, is interested in approximately 15%
of the issued share capital of each of Yuen Loong and Chelsey
through interests in controlled corporation. Madam Rosita
YUEN LAM Kit Woo, a director of the Company, is interested in
approximately 10% of the issued share capital of each of Yuen
Loong and Chelsey through interests in controlled corporation.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified
by any other person who had an interest in 5% or more of the
issued share capital of the Company or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO as at 31st March, 2008.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable donations
amounting to approximately HK$466,000.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group had cash balance of HK$221 million and no
outstanding bank loans as at 31st March, 2008.

With cash and other current assets of HK$606 million as
at 31st March, 2008 as well as available banking facilities,
the Group has sufficient financial resources to satisfy its
commitments and working capital requirements.

NET ASSET VALUE

The net asset value of the Group as at 31st March, 2008 was
HK$0.71 per share based on 1,406,906,460 shares in issue as
at that date.

=

FERRHA)
izt -
1 WHRGIETA -

2. ARAMEIMARELER=ZZZ
NEARATZBEHE) D BI%S Yuen
Loong X Chelsey B 31T K4 24 %
i o ARNBEEMMELER B
2 {5E(H 5 5 % & Yuen Loong
K Chelsey B BT IR AN 4] 24% #E %% )
ZEEZEA o NAREFMMAB T
EBEBRZEFN AR ZEES TS
Yuen Loong K Chelsey 2 % 17 i% ZX
#4) 15% #Exs o AR R ERRMEM
ZHBBRZIETIA R Z w5 Bl
& Yuen Loong % Chelsey B 3 17 %
ANHI10% HE2s o

B EXFBEEN  R-BBNFS
A=+—B  ARALTAEEEE
Hit A\ HBARTZ ERITBAE%
A S AR B AR 19 3 524830 A 2 AR
1535 2 B 15 01 25 336 16 T 7 B 2
B 2 EAHIAR -

HERX

AEBARFE 2 B EIBHRA 466,000
BT

RBEERMBER

AEEBR-_ZZNF=ZA=+—8B%
B e 4 ERA 221,000,000 7T &
BRARBERITER

AEBR_ZZENEFE=ZA=+—
BB REMRBEERXDN A
606,000,000/ 7C + #E[E 7] By A 2 iR
TEE AEEREERBZTBER
NEREAREREEESHS °

BEEFE

BE-—_ZZENF=ZA=1+—HBHB %
ANz &R E B 1,406,906,460 % 51
B AEERZACZEEFEATR
0.71 87T °
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The total number of employees for the Group is about 390.

Remuneration packages are reviewed by the Group from time
to time. In addition to salary payments, other fringe benefits
for the staff include retirement benefits schemes and medical
insurance scheme, as well as quarters and housing allowances
for certain staff. The Group has taken out personal accident
insurance for senior staff and the staff who frequently travel
overseas on business trips.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the financial year ended 31st March, 2008, the five largest
customers of the Group accounted for approximately 55% by
value of the Group's turnover and the five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 74% by value of the Group's
total purchases. Approximately 25% of the Group's turnover
and approximately 61% of the Group's total purchases were
attributable to the Group's largest customer and supplier
respectively.

Cousins of the Company's Directors (Mr. David LAM Kwing
Chan (deceased on 12th June, 2008), Mr. Alvin LAM Kwing
Wai, Madam Rosita YUEN LAM Kit Woo and Mr. Laurent LAM
Kwing Chee) had beneficial interests in the Group's largest
supplier. The Group held 40% beneficial interest in this largest
supplier.

Save as disclosed above and as far as the Company's
Directors are aware, none of the Directors of the Company
or any of their other associates, or any shareholders (which,
to the best knowledge of the Directors, owned more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had a beneficial
interest in the Group’s five largest customers and five largest
suppliers.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, based on the information publicly
available to the Company and within the knowledge of the
Directors of the Company, over 25% of the issued share
capital of the Company was held by the public as required
under the Listing Rules.

BERMEBUR

AEBEEBAHHR390% -
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DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO RULES 13.13 AND 13.16 OF
THE LISTING RULES

Advances to entities under Rule 13.13 and financial
assistance to and guarantees given for facilities granted
to the Company’s affiliated companies under Rule 13.16

The following table summarises the loans and guarantees
granted by the Group to (i) entities which individually
exceeded 8% of the relevant percentage ratios under Rule
13.13 of the Listing Rules as at 31st March, 2008 and (ii) the
Company's affiliated companies which in aggregate exceeded
8% of the relevant percentage ratios under Rule 13.16 of the
Listing Rules as at 31st March, 2008:

BELELTHRANE13.13%13.16 1§
EHZHE

REE13.1B3HFROEREHRZERRR
BE13.16REAAX AT 2HE A R RM
ZHBEBRBRARAZHEARTE
BERERREZER

AEBR-ZZEZENF=A=1+—HI)
MERBREZEREHEERMIRME 2
BR HEEN&ZHEBR EMHRAE
1313 1R EZBEBE D L8% 2 EXR
FHER 0 i) AR R 2B B AR AT
REZEREHE QR FTREZE
R HAT@%EREETRAIZE13.16
BREZEBED 8% 2 ERKLIER
U

Aggregate
Extent of  of advances
Attributable Non-interest guaranteed and
interest held by bearing  Guarantees facilities guarantees
Affiliated companies the Group advances (A) given (B) utilised  given (A+B)
EXRRM2
rEEREZ ®E Rtz EBAZ BRAE
BEAR FEfn s EX(A) #R(B) RRRER (A+B)
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 Notes
B FBT FBT T FAT Wit
(i)  Sirinumma Company
Limited and
its subsidiaries
Sirinumma Company
Limited BEHE A A
Sirinumma Company
Limited 40.00 11,390 31,452 — 42,842 a
Siripattana Rice Company
Limited 69.40 18,883 52,961 27968 71,844 b, ¢
40.00 and
Sirinumma Company 69.40
Limited and }% Siripattana respectively
Rice Company Limited 254 40.00 % 69.40 — 27234 19,057 27234 d
Aggregate of Sirinumma
Company Limited and its
subsidiaries
Sirinumma Company
Limited B E B 1\ 7 & &t 30,273 111,647 47,025 141,920 e
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DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO RULES 13.13 AND 13.16 OF BEEHTHRANE13.13%13.16 {F
THE LISTING RULES (Continued) EHZBE(E)
Advances to entities under Rule 13.13 and financial BEFE13. 13 ENERIEHZEFTERER
assistance to and guarantees given for facilities granted EFE13.16 8 AA DR 2 HE A B4t
to the Company’s affiliated companies under Rule 13.16 CHBEMRERANAB BB N FE
(Continued) BEREMRMZERE)
Aggregate
Extent of  of advances
Attributable Non-interest guaranteed and
interest held by bearing  Guarantees facilities guarantees
Affiliated companies the Group advances (A) given (B) utilised  given (A+B)
EXRRMt2
rEEREZ %8 Rtz 2BfAz BRAE
BEAR PR EX(A) #R(B) EREER (A+B)
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 Notes
Bk FET FBT FBT FET Mt

(i)  Dragon Fortune Ltd. and
its subsidiaries
Dragon Fortune Ltd.
=g P
Dragon Fortune Ltd. 28.00 72,106 — — 72,106 f

Fortune Leader Investment
Limited
EBEEEBRAR 28.00 — 43,680 2,520 43680 g

Fortune Leader Overseas
Chinese (Daiyawan)
Investment Company

Limited
REEG(KDE)RERRA
] 22.40 — 16,838 1,056 16,838 h

Aggregate of Dragon
Fortune Ltd. and its
subsidiaries
Dragon Fortune Ltd.
HEMBRRAAR 72,106 60,518 3,576 132,624 ¢
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DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO RULES 13.13 AND 13.16 OF HBE ETHREE13.13%13.16 1
THE LISTING RULES (Continued) EHZE(E)
Advances to entities under Rule 13.13 and financial REF13. 13N EREHZETRIE
assistance to and guarantees given for facilities granted EE13.16 RAA AT 2 BB A Tig 4t
to the Company’s affiliated companies under Rule 13.16 CHBEMRMRAEAT BB A FE
(Continued) BREMRMZ’BRE)
Aggregate
Extent of  of advances
Attributable  Non-interest guaranteed and
interest held by bearing  Guarantees facilities  guarantees
Affiliated companies the Group advances (A) given (B) utilised  given (A+B)
EXRRMH 2
rEEREL %E Rtz EBAZ kREE
BEAR iR EX(A) &R (B) EREER (A+B)
% HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 Notes
B FET FET FET FET Wit

(iii) Golden World Enterprises
(Wuhan) Limited
SRERLE(RE)ERAR 25.50 2,229 - — 2,229 f

(iv)]  Supreme Development
Company Limited

BARRHARLF 41.16 3,607 — — 3,607 f

(v)  Wellight Development
Limited 3750 10,773 — — 10,773 f

(vi)  Loyal Brilliant Limited
REERATE 48.00 4,327 — = 4327 f

(vii) FERER(FRY)ERAR 48.00 = 4,800 — 4,800 i

Total
@t 123,315 176,965 50,601 300,280
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DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO RULES 13.13 AND 13.16 OF
THE LISTING RULES (Continued)

The proforma combined balance sheet of the above affiliated
companies, as attributable to the Group, as at 31st March,
2008 is as follows:

HBELETHRAE13.13%13.16 1§
EHZHE (&)

AEEMELABB AR _-_FFN
FZA=+t—HZBEAHEEAR
RWAE

HK$°000

FET

Non-current assets ERBNE E 177,832
Current assets MENE B 195,635
Current liabilities MEAE (130,716)
Net current assets mMENEERE 64,919
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (143,345)
Minority interests DHIR RS (24,929)
Shareholders’ equity A% SR A 25 74,477

Details of the above affiliated companies are set out in note
15 to the financial statements.

Notes:

(a) The advances included a loan made pursuant to a loan
agreement dated 30th August, 2002 entered into between
Cost Logistics Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company (“Cost Logistics”), as lender and Sirinumma
Company Limited (“Sirinumma”) as borrower and current
account balances for expenses paid on behalf of Sirinumma.
The loan was interest-free, repayable on demand and
secured by the shares in Siripattana Rice Company Limited
(“Siripattana”) that would be allotted and issued to Sirinumma
as a result of Sirinumma’s additional capital contribution to
Siripattana. The current account balances were interest-free,
unsecured and repayable on demand.

(b)  The advances represented shareholder’s loans to finance the
working capital of Siripattana. The advances were interest-
free, unsecured and repayable on demand.

LB B AR 2 FBHI RIS ®RE
BsE15 ©

(a) ZEEREVE —BERBEAAAZ
f # 2 & M{ B A 7] Cost Logistics
Limited ([Cost Logistics]) F & &
73 B2 Sirinumma Company Limited
([Sirinumma ){ERERTR=ZTZ=
FNA=THITIZZER B MR
2 B3 & A Sirinumma 3 1+ H & H
RS c ZTHERARE - A
1% @ A8 2 K AE R Sirinumma Al
Siripattana Rice Company Limited
([Siripattana ) &84 & 1M #& & B2 3%
%475 Sirinumma Z Siripattana %
PIEER - ERBRAERUREE - &
PR BRBAERE -

(b)  ZEEMJAESiripattana gt & iEE
SIZBREER - ZEERARE - &
IR R AR BAEE -

Guolden Resources Annual Report 33



92008

Arneal, R t;bm*f

Report of the Directors
HHGHREE

DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO RULES 13.13 AND 13.16 OF
THE LISTING RULES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c)

(e)

(f)

(h)

(i)

)

Siripattana is the Company's associated company and is
accounted for using equity accounting method as the entire
issued share capital of Siripattana is held as to 51% by
Sirinumma (40% of which entire issued capital is indirectly
owned by the Company) and as to 49% by Cost Logistics.

The guarantee was given for banking facilities granted to
Sirinumma and Siripattana.

Aggregated pursuant to Rule 13.11(2)(c) of the Listing Rules.

The advances were made as shareholder’s loans to finance the
investments or working capital of respective entity or affiliated
company. The advances were interest-free, unsecured and
repayable on demand.

The guarantee was given for loan facilities granted to Fortune
Leader Investment Limited (“FL Investment”). FL Investment is
a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Dragon Fortune Ltd.

The guarantee was given for loan facilities granted to Fortune
Leader Overseas Chinese (Daiyawan) Investment Company
Limited (“FL Overseas"”). FL Overseas is owned as to 80% by
FL Investment and as to 20% by an Independent Third Party.

The guarantee was given for loan facilities granted to FIERINE @

(FY) BERAR.

Aggregated pursuant to Rule 13.16 of the Listing Rules.

BELELTHRANE13.13%13.16 1§
EHZHEE)

Hret - (&)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Siripattanaz & S E & 17T IR &N A
Sirinumma## & 51% (/1 Sirinumma
240% 2 HEEITRABARRQ AR
% #%H) BHCost Logistics#H A
49% - # Siripattana AN A &) 2 B &
RAEIRAESEEHEAR ©

ZHEIR ThHE Sirinumma & Siripattana
B ZRITRE MR

BIE_ETRBIE 13.11(2)(c) f§A 5T -

ZEERTIABRE R A [ E R E
RABMBARRHEAENESSE 2
RENEBESNT - REEHRA/R
B EIRAR AR AEE -

ZERDERREGR AR ([ER
BENDNERZEEMRE - BEREER
JiDragon Fortune Ltd. ZEH#EZ &
HBAF -

ZERDREEBREFREE)ERE
BERAR(EEREDERZEE
migft - BEREHERRERE
80% ' FHBIE=ERFEF20% °

ZERTIEMBARRRCRIDERA
AERZEEmEMR

RIBEETRAE 1316 kS5 ©
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AUDITORS
A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting to re-appoint HLM & Co. as auditors of the

Company.

On behalf of the board

Alvin LAM Kwing Wai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 15th July, 2008
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Y 5L A% BORT R

et gt 4T
HLM & Co.
Certified Public Accountants

TO THE MEMBERS OF

GOLDEN RESOURCES DEVELOPMENT INTERNATIONAL
LIMITED

SFRKRRBERARAT

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Golden Resources Development International Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) set out on pages 38 to 114, which comprise
the consolidated and Company balance sheets as at 31st
March, 2008, and the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We

Room 305, Arion Commercial Centre

2-12 Queen’s Road West, Hong Kong.

il B 5 R 0 2- 125 P S b 0305 %
Tel E#: (852) 3103 6980

Faxf{HF: (852) 3104 0170

E-mail % #: hlm@hlm.com.hk
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conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 31st March, 2008 and of the Group’s
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLM & Co.
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 15th July, 2008
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Consolidated Income Statement

S (e
For the year ended 315t March, 2008 # % —~ EENFE=H =+ —HILFF
2008 2007
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
k23 FEx FET
As restated
KB
TURNOVER = 2 5 556,864 529,542
Cost of sales SHE AR (405,730) (377.357)
GROSS PROFIT EF 151,134 152,185
Net unrealized (loss)/gain on MREHRIE A T ERE
financial assets at fair value ZEeRMBEEZAEIR
through profit or loss (BB),/ W= T8 (28,660) 1,459
Surplus on revaluation of BHREYE
investment properties Z AR 4,410 1,780
Other income H g A 7 109,055 55,826
Selling and distribution costs SHEE R SHEAR (26,592) (33,904)
Administrative expenses EEEH (111,449) (99,503)
Impairment loss on loan BRZRE
receivable [E518 (29,455) =
Unrealized loss on derivative mAESRmITIAY
financial instruments R ETIE (3,017) =
Gain on disposal of an investment H&E—EREYE
property e - 24,960
Write-back of impairment loss N EPNCS3 2 4E
recognised on assets upon BEZEEREE
disposal of subsidiaries 518 — 9,101
PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS EER 65,426 111,904
Finance costs U I TN (2,049) (362)
Share of results of associates BEHE NRIEE (39,607) (6,648)
Gain on disposal of an associate  #itE—EHE A A 2 WS 653 —
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION FRBE AR R 8 24,423 104,894
Taxation T8 9 (15,520) (15,980)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AEERF 8,903 88,914
Attributable to: ERAFERF
Shareholders of the Company ZIN/NET 3 8,722 77078
Minority interests DT R ERS 181 11,836
8,903 88,914
DIVIDENDS BE 10 38,690 38,690
EARNINGS PER SHARE BRER 11
—Basic — B HKO0.6 cents&{lI HK5.8 cents &1l
—Diluted — B8 N/ATERA HK5.7 cents &1l
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
LEBEEAMER

1¢ 315t March, 2008 J3 ~EEZNE=H=—4—H

2008 2007
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
it FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment MIE - BB ES R 72 75,414 85,332
Investment properties REYE 73 27,890 23,480
Interests in associates i N 75 340,493 182,417
Available-for-sale investments AHERSE 76 88,674 131,840
Prepaid lease payments TS HERIE 77 19,958 20,084
552,429 443,153
CURRENT ASSETS nEEE
Inventories & 78 102,597 66,170
Trade debtors FEUNE Z BRI 79 56,826 43,449
Other debtors, deposits and HMERERIE - ek
prepayments SEENE 0] 69,271 106,040
Financial assets at fair value RIBRBRIE AT EERE
through profit or loss CEREE 20 155,913 150,009
Cash and cash equivalents RERIFEER 221,819 299,850
606,426 665,518
CURRENT LIABILITIES wEBEE
Trade creditors JEE SR8 27 6,875 2,913
Other creditors HaEffiRERE A
and accruals HEfF 19,491 35,330
Derivative financial instruments PTHEERT A 22 3,017 —
Tax liabilities HMEAE 29,879 39,106
59,262 77349
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 547,164 588,169
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEEM
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE 1,099,593 1,031,322

Golden Resources Annual Report 390



92008

Aririeeal R, t;bm*f

Consolidated Balance Sheet
LEBEEAMER

At 315t March, 2008 3 = FEENE=H=4—H

2008 2007
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
itz3 FET FAET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Deferred tax liabilities RIETRIESE 23 2,671 2,700
Advances from minority FEfS DB
shareholders IR 24 — 9,313
Convertible notes CIE 5 25 86,210 —
88,881 12,013
1,010,712 1,019,309
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EARE#E
Share capital &7 26 140,691 140,691
Reserves e 27 856,964 865,933
Shareholders’ equity A% R A 997,655 1,006,624
Minority interests DB R R 28 13,057 12,685
1,010,712 1,019,309
The financial statements on pages 38 to 114 were approved HNEIBEEEN4BE 2B ERER
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 15th —EEN\E+AIRERESeHE
July, 2008 and are signed on its behalf by: RERTIRTHARES
Alvin LAM Kwing Wai TSANG Siu Hung
A2 2k
Chairman Executive Director
£ HiTEE
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Balance Sheet

HEBER
¢ 315t March, 2008 Jt ~FEENE=H=1—H
2008 2007
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
it FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSET FRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NG £ 14 943,380 898,910
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Other debtors, deposits and HEMERERE - Ze Rk
prepayments TEfT IR 149 161
Cash and cash equivalents RehReFH 2 4
151 165
CURRENT LIABILITY REBEE
Other creditors HibESERTE R E A
and accruals HEE 82 54
NET CURRENT ASSETS FBEEZRE 69 1m
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT #A&ER
LIABILITY REBEE 943,449 899,021
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY kRBAE
Convertible notes EIE: 8 25 86,210 —
857,239 899,021
CAPITAL AND RESERVES ERE#FE
Share capital A&z 26 140,691 140,691
Reserves e 27 716,548 758,330
857,239 899,021
Alvin LAM Kwing Wai TSANG Siu Hung
A =Pl
Chairman Executive Director
EY HITEE

Guolden Resources Annual Report 41
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
EEHESRER

For the year ended 315t March, 2008 # £ ~FFENF=H =1 —H ILFE

2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$°000
FRET FEIT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KK
Profit before taxation R A5 B a A 24,423 104,894
Adjustments for: FHEE
Interest income FEWA (22,138) (29,915)
Finance costs EURID RN 2,049 362
Dividend income % B WA (3,230) (1,458)
Depreciation and amortisation LE R =
of property, plant and BB ITE
equipment &3 10,268 10,107
Amortisation of prepaid lease FENEE
payments FRIB 2 B 5 511 502
Net gain on disposal of e MEME - BE
property, plant and equipment W28 MR 2 F W e (2,616) (502)
Share of results of associates B(EEE DR 2 HEE 39,607 6,648
Surplus on revaluation of HEKRE
investment properties W3 2 BER (4,410) (1,780)
Bad debts written off AR S 907 1,190
Impairment loss on loan BERZRE
receivable &8 29,455 =
Net realized gain on disposal of HEMHERE
available-for-sale investments 2 BB F WA (37,266) (1,739)
Gain on disposal of MiE—EEE R R
an associate e (653) =
Gain on disposal of an HE—TBREME L
investment property & — (24,960)
Write-back of impairment loss R ENE A AR D
recognised on assets upon BEZCHRRE
disposal of subsidiaries =g — (9,101)
Operating cash flows before EEESEH 2 LE
movements in working capital Hene 36,907 54,248
Increase in financial assets at fair RIBRIRIR A FHEEE
value through profit and loss LB RE E 2B (5,451) (42,367)
Increase in inventories FE &N (35,644) (3,057)
(Increase)/decrease in trade FEURE SER1E 2 (3840),/
debtors Vo (12,355) 6,093
Increase/(decrease) in other H b U BRIE
debtors, deposits and Re RBENREZ
prepayments (&), (126) 18,996
Increase in trade creditors FERTE S BRIE 2 3N 3,861 802
(Decrease)/increase in other HMEMNREREA
creditors and accruals B2 CRd), /1 (18,753) 10,329
Increase in derivative financial ESBIA
instruments 2380 3,017 =
Cash (used in)/generated from KEEB(FR),/EE
operations ZBE (28,544) 45,044
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EREBFEH (18,387) (10,600)
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded EREBIFEEFFH 7777 32
Income tax in other jurisdiction BT EMRERERE 2
paid Fri5 %t (14,706) (5,809)
NET CASH (USED IN)/ P53
GENERATED FROM (FrA)/E%
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ZEERE (53,860) 28,667
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
»/T\ fﬁ.ﬂi{)lh%%

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 # £ — FE/NF=H="1—HILF/&
2008 2007
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
Htat FET FAET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXK
Interest received B HE 30,929 28,042
Dividend received B AR B 3,230 1,458
Advances to associates CESRt-UNE] (13,125) (19,375)
Disposal of subsidiaries HE M B A A 31 - 1,485
Additions to investments in i) /NE]
associates 1A (178,947) =
Purchases of property, plant and BB AR R
equipment B (5,077) (16,675)
Purchases of available-for-sale BEHE
investments RE - (199,635)
Repayments from associates BN A 2 BN 13,634 1,896
Proceeds from disposal of HEME  BEHKSE K
property, plant and equipment R TS 5IE 8,477 1,131
Proceeds from disposal of an HE—BREWEZ
investment property FTiS 78 — 51,160
Proceeds from disposal of an ﬁﬁﬂlﬁﬁ—ﬁﬂﬁ‘ﬁ%ﬁ AlZ
associate S s 2,689 —
Proceeds from disposal of H:'%Tﬁ’%&’éfz}iﬁ?—%
available-for-sale investments FIE 66,162 217976
Additions to pledged bank deposit &N EIREITFI (789) (19,626)
NET CASH (USED IN)/ REXK
GENERATED FROM (FrR)/ EBEZ
INVESTING ACTIVITIES HEFE (72,817) 47837
FINANCING ACTIVITIES AEER
Dividends paid ERIRE (38,690) (33,922
Interest paid ETHE (152) (362)
Proceeds from issue of BT EIR ZFT15
convertible notes FRIE 85,500 —
Repayments of advances from BELHRR
minority shareholders ZE (9,016) (14,303)
Proceeds from issue of new BITHTIR
shares ZF1S 518 - 27,840
NET CASH GENERATED BMEXK
FROM/(USED IN) FINANCING EE/(FFA)Z
ACTIVITIES ReFE 37,642 (20,747)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
WT\ fﬁﬂ‘z(}[ui?‘%

For the year ended 315t March, 2008 # %~ FEZNFE=H =4 —HIFFE

2008 2007
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE iﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%%ﬁz
IN CASH AND CASH w0
EQUIVALENTS ;”%%E (89,035) 55,757
CASH AND CASH HeRBEESEH
EQUIVALENTS AT REA 2
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR b2 280,224 217710
EFFECT OF FOREIGN ERAR
EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES il 10,215 6,757
CASH AND CASH ReRBESEHE
EQUIVALENTS AT END OF REKZ
THE YEAR 3 201,404 280,224
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES H&eRREZ%
OF CASH AND CASH ZEERR
EQUIVALENTS DT
Time deposits, bank balances and F 17 « BITFR KL
cash Be 221,819 264,479
Short-term liquid investment EEREERE = 35,371
221,819 299,850
Less: Pledged bank deposit Ji - BARIRIRTTIE AR (20,415) (19,626)
201,404 280,224

46
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Notes to the Financial Statements

S 5 i % M SR

For the year ended 315t March, 2008 # £ —~FEE/NF=H =1 —H ILFE

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The Company acts as an investment holding company
and its subsidiaries are engaged in the business of
sourcing, importing, wholesaling, processing, packaging,
marketing and distribution of rice, securities investment,
property investment and investment holding.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first
time, the following new standards, amendments and
interpretations (the “new HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
"HKICPA"), which are either effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2007.

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Capital Disclosures
HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures

HK(IFRIC) — Int 7 Applying the Restatement
Approach under
HKAS 29 Financial Reporting
in Hyperinflationary
Economies

HK(IFRIC) — Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2

HK(IFRIC) — Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded
Derivatives

Interim Financial Reporting
and Impairment

HKFRS 2 — Group and
Treasury Share

Transactions

HK (IFRIC) — Int 10

HK(IFRIC) — Int 11

Bt

ARBRBREZMAKL BER
RERBEMERR  HRONEE
BMEXBAARAR(TBERA])
£

ARRBR/REERRAR - MEMH
BRAA/KERE  ADQ - #t
RBAMI - BE mBSEE
MHEERK EHRE - WER
BRIREER -

RAMEREBIT 2ERY
B EAEA

RAERE - AREE EREAN
TEEMEBRHBAGENH
AR (35T BB BT
ERUBREER])  FTEE
BB RRE R T LN
A— B OA KB 2 @3 HIR A
2 o

R EARACE) AXBE
BRABARSRRT SHIR 5B

BE(BRYRRERRZEE) ERZAGH

—2EE7H EEHZ09%
B3k
EE(EREEREREZEE) AANBRE
—REFSH RAZEL
#E
Fh(ERyRRSREZEE)  EHAsA
—RBEIYE s
FEERIERLREZEE) EEERE
—REENH REE
EEEREEREREZEE) BANERE
—REEN R ERIE 2%
— £ER
ERRARS
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Notes to the Financial Statements

S 5 i % M AR

For the year ended 315t March, 2008 # £ X ENF=H =+ —HIFFF

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect
on how the results and financial position of the Group
for the current or prior accounting periods have been
prepared. Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has
been required.

The Group has applied the disclosure requirements under
HKAS 1 (Amendment) and HKFRS 7 retrospectively.
Certain information presented in prior year under the
requirements of HKAS 32 has been removed and
the relevant comparative information based on the
requirements of HKAS 1 (Amendment) and HKFRS 7 has
been presented for the first time in the current year.

The Group has not early applied the following new
standards, amendments or interpretations that have been
issued but are not yet effective. The directors of the
Company anticipate that the application of these new
standards, amendments or interpretations will have no
material impact on the results and the financial position
of the Group.

Presentation of Financial
Statements'

Borrowing Costs'

Consolidated and separate
financial statements?

Share-based payment-
vesting conditions and
cancellations'

Business combinations?

Operating Segments'

Service Concession
Arrangements®

Customer Loyalty
Programmes*

HKAS 19 — The Limit on a
Defined Benefit Asset,
Minimum Funding
Requirements and their
Interaction®

HKAS 1 (Revised)

HKAS 23 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)
HKFRS 8
HK(IFRIC) — Int 12

HK(IFRIC) — Int 13

HK(IFRIC) — Int 14

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
January, 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July,
2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
January, 2008

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July,
2008

2.

R REEIT 2ERY
B|ERER(#)

R B AN RS LERE A
FEREFRE ZZERMBRR
VEEBREAZE - RILEFRE
AT E A2

AEECRAEESENE
$(ER]) REBRB M B RELEANE
7% 2RSTAZELC EBE
- BRREE G ERIZE 325
BEXRFBELE2HEBHRLEHBE
EHEBBEBECRBB S ELNSE
155 (18 5]) R &8 M 15 i & 2 A
FTRRAFEF KR -

AEEYERFERAESRMER
REMZ THFER - EF] R
B ARBEEHET  BRALF
R BRI MR BT e YA
KB XE NI EEER
EXFE-

ERGIRNZ1R(RET)  WEER
22l
FRetEAEnRBET)  EERNK
ERGIRNZDR(BEY)  RAREU
ikax’
WRE A 2308
— BRRAR
i’
FAUBASENEIN ()  Ehad
ERUBASENZH EEHY

ERUBASENZ 2% (BH)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

S 55 R M T

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 #; % —

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified for the revaluation
of investment properties, available-for-sale investments
and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
which are measured at fair values as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the new HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA.
In addition, the financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31st March each year.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to
the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

All significant intra-group transactions, balances, income
and expenses have been eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated
subsidiaries are presented separately from the Group's
equity therein. Minority interests in the net assets
consist of the amount of those interests at the date of
the original business combination and the minority’s
share of changes in equity since the date of the
combination. Investments in certain subsidiaries were in
the form of equity and loans from the Group and other
shareholders in accordance with respective percentages
of equity shareholding in these subsidiaries. Investments
in the form of loans were comparatively more significant
than those in the form of equity, so that the entire
amounts were treated as quasi-capital. Under these
circumstances, the aggregate of minority shareholders’
equity and loan investments were taken into account in
sharing the losses incurred by these subsidiaries.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

S 5 i % M AR

For the year ended 315t March, 2008 # £ X ENF=H =+ —HIFFF

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business Combinations

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisition represents the excess of
the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the net
fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities recognised. Such goodwill is
carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment annually
or whenever there is an indication that the unit may
be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the
unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
first, and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata
on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in the income statement. An impairment loss for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent years.

Capitalised goodwill arising on acquisition of subsidiary
is presented separately in the balance sheet. Capitalised
goodwill arising on acquisition of associate, which is
accounted for using the equity method, is included in the
cost of the investment of the relevant associate.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary or an associate,
the attributable amount of goodwill previously capitalised
is included in the determination of the profit or loss on
disposal.

3.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

S 5 i % M SR

For the year ended 315t March, 2008 # £ ~FENF=H =1 —H ILFE
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHBXRBE#RE)
(Continued)
Business Combinations (Continued) EKEHE)
Excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value KEBELL Tk iE 2\ 7l 2 a7
of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and BEE - BEERSAREBEZLFE

contingent liabilities over cost (previously known as
“negative goodwill”)

A discount on acquisition arising on acquisition of
subsidiary or associate represents the excess of the
Group's interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over the cost of the business combination. Discount
on acquisition is recognised immediately in the income
statement in the year in which the acquisition takes
place.

Revenue recognition

(i)  Sales of goods are recognised as revenue when
goods are delivered and title has passed.

(i) Rental income under operating leases is recognised
on a straight-line basis over the relevant lease
terms.

(iii) Revenue arising on the sale of financial instruments
is recognised on a trade-date basis.

(iv) Dividend income from investments is recognised
when the Group's rights to receive payment have
been established.

(v) Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the
interest rate applicable.

Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are included in the

Company’'s balance sheet at cost less any identified
impairment loss.

EFREEREARZZEHE (FIB A
BE/)

B e S B JB 2 B S B 8 R R P EE
EzWETREAREMERK
BRRZAREE  BENMK
ARABRPFHERNEB A HFK
A2 E - W T WEE
T2 F R R R P RER o

st E

(i) EmHEEIBAREYX
K P SR R R

(i) BB AEEBZENS
NA B SOAMER ©

(i) HEEMIAEZKWARR
ZBEMER -

(iv) BRERBWAEREEK
AR B 2 A IE R B 1R
FERR. ©

v) MEBEBAZERFRZIA
& B A E A M RIZFR
AL ) ARG -

MELRZRE

ARABERBRAZHEAT
KRB TR AENRR A A 9432
REEBAR -




-l.(){}l?

6MMM%VMN

Notes to the Financial Statements

S 5 i % M AR

For the year ended 315t March, 2008 # £~ FFENF=H =+ —HIFFZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Interests in associates

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in the Group's financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, investments in associates are carried in the
consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-
acquisition changes in the Group's share of the profit
or loss and of changes in equity of the associate, less
any identified impairment loss. When the Group's
share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in that associate (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group's net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An
additional share of losses is provided for and a liability is
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal obligations or made payments on behalf of that
associate.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of
the Group's interest in the relevant associate.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.
Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as expenses in
the year in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

S 5 i % M SR

For the year ended 315t March, 2008 # £~ FFENFE=H =+ —HIFFZ
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. XEEHBEXREBREE)

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and amortisation and
accumulated impairment loss.

The land and building elements of a lease of land and
building are considered separately for the purpose of
lease classification, unless the lease payment cannot
be allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, in which case, the entire lease is generally
treated as a finance lease and accounted for as property,
plant and equipment. To the extent the allocation of the
lease payment can be made reliably, leasehold interest
in land is treated as an operating lease and accounted for
as prepaid lease payment.

Depreciation and amortisation are provided to write

off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment,

over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line

method, at the following rates per annum:

Land and buildings Over the shorter of the remaining
land lease term and 4%

Factory premises in elsewhere
in the People’s Republic of China

(the “PRC") 2% — 5%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5% — 20%
Plant and machinery 5% — 33%

Motor vehicles and vessels 12% — 33%
The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sale proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the
income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

S 5 i % M SR

For the year ended 315t March, 2008 # %2 —~ FFNFE=H=—+—HIFF&F

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Prepaid lease payments

The up-front prepayments paid for the leasehold land are
stated at cost and charged to the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
as an expense immediately, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount under another accounting
standard, in which case the impairment loss is treated as
a revaluation decrease under that accounting standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, such that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount under another accounting standard,
in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation increase under that accounting
standard.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

S 5 i % M SR

For the year ended 315t March, 2008 # £ ~FENF=H =1 —H ILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are completed properties which
are held for their investment potential, any rental income
being negotiated at arm’s length. On initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured using
the fair value model. Unrealized gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair value of investment property are
included in profit or loss for the year in which they arise.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on
the balance sheet when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The Group’s financial assets are classified as “financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss”, “available-for-
sale investments” and “loans and receivables”. Financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss includes
investments held for trading purpose and investments
designated at fair value through profit or loss upon initial
recognition. Available-for-sale investments are non-
derivatives that are either designated as available-for-
sale investments or not classified as any of the other
categories under the financial assets classification.
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments. Financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss and available-for-sale
investments are carried at fair value, with changes in fair
values recognised in the income statement and equity
respectively. Loans and receivables are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

3.
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For the year ended 315t March, 2008 g% — 32/ 4F

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether
there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. Impairment loss is
recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses
on available-for-sale equity investments are not reversed
through the income statement in subsequent years.
Impairment losses on available-for-sale debt investments
are subsequently reversed if an increase in the fair
value of the investment can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the recognition of the impairment
loss. Impairment losses on loans and receivables
are subsequently reversed if an increase in the loans
and receivables’ recoverable amount can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, subject to a restriction that the carrying
amount of the loans and receivables at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed the amortised
cost that would have been had the impairment not been

recognised.

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised or derecognised on a trade date basis and
initially measured at fair value plus directly attributable
transaction costs. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets have expired or when the
financial assets have been transferred, and the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition
of a financial asset, the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the aggregate of the consideration
received and gain or loss that had been recognised
directly in equity is recognised in the income statement
for the year.

Financial liabilities include trade and other loan payables
and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest rate method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

S 5 i % M SR

For the year ended 315t March, 2008 # £~ FFENFE=H =+ —HIFFZ
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEHEFEEBREE)

(Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset/liability and of
allocating interest income/expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts/payments
(including all fees on points paid or received that form
an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset/liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period. Income/expense is
recognised on an effective interest basis for financial
asset/liability.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair values at each balance sheet
date. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and
effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the
timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the
nature of the hedge relationship.

Derivatives of the Group which do not qualify for hedge
accounting are deemed as financial assets held for
trading or financial liabilities held for trading. Changes in
fair values of such derivatives are recognised directly in
income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

S 5 i % M AR

For the year ended 315t March, 2008 # %2 —~ FFNFE=H=—+—HIFFF

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Convertible notes

The component of convertible notes that exhibits
characteristics of a liability is recognised as a liability
in the balance sheet. On issuance of convertible notes,
the fair value of the liability component is determined
using a market rate for an equivalent non-convertible
note; and this amount is carried as a liability on the
amortised cost basis until extinguished on conversion or
redemption. The remainder of the proceeds is allocated
to the conversion option that is recognised and included
in shareholders’ equity heading convertible notes equity
reserve. The carrying amount of the conversion option is
not remeasured in subsequent years. Transaction costs
are charged to income statement at the date of the note
issued.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income
statement.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net

realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average cost method.
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March, 2008 #% %

For the year ended 315t

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity are recorded in its
functional currency at the rates of exchange prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet
date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance
sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise, except for exchange differences arising
on a monetary item that forms part of the Group’s net
investment in a foreign operation, in which case, such
exchange differences are recognised in equity in the
consolidated financial statements. Exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the
period except for differences arising on the retranslation
of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and
losses are recognised directly in equity, in which cases,
the exchange differences are also recognised directly in
equity.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the balance sheet date, and their income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year. The corresponding exchange differences, if any,
are recognised as a separate component of equity. Such
exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in

the period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

S 5 i % M SR

For the year ended 315t March, 2008 # £~ FFENF=H =+ —HIFFZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs when a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in accordance with
the original or modified terms of a debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract issued by the Group and
not designated as at fair value through profit or loss
is recognised initially at its fair value less transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issue of the
financial guarantee contract. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee
contact at the higher of: (i) the amount determined
in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and (ii) the amount
initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation recognised in accordance with HKAS 18
Revenue.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported
in the income statement because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.
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S 55 R MY T

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 #; % —

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax base used in the computation of taxable profit, and
is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realized. Deferred tax is charged or
credited to the income statement, except when it relates
to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which
case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
plans are charged as expenses as they fall due.

»»»»»»»
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Notes to the Financial Statements

S 5 i K M AR

For the year ended 315t March, 2008 # £ ~FFENF=H =1 —H ILFE
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. XESHBXRBE#E)
(Continued)
Operating leases EEHED
Rental expenses payable under operating leases are BIESEHRANEMNZHESHAS T
charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis REBHENBNESEa kER
over the relevant lease terms. kK o
Cash and cash equivalents BHERBEEHE
Cash and cash equivalents as presented in the balance NEEBBEREVZERESEES
sheet represent cash on hand, cash and time deposits EEAERE  FHRREBITRE
with banks and other financial institutions, and short- o B FE M 2 T R E IR R
term liquid investments which are readily convertible KA BIRF& IR KR BIRIETE 2B
into known amounts of cash and subject to an AR E - WEEBEESRER
insignificant risk of change in value. For the purpose of ms » — MR EEL=EA8 W
the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash FHI B EAR S RIS 55
equivalents which have short-term maturity of generally @ ;Eﬁé%:]:ﬁ%féﬁﬁ&%}ﬂz$;%@
within three months upon acquisition, together with bank ZHREEBREREMNZBETEX
overdrafts and bank loans, if any, which are repayable REBTEZ(A)MEHERGES
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash Iﬁfé/}wgﬁﬁﬁ'iﬁlJZEEﬁ&ﬁ,i
management, are included as components of cash and 58 o
cash equivalents as presented in the consolidated cash
flow statement.
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY 4. FARETHERGETTRE

SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements
requires the management to make significant estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses as well as the
related disclosures. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year are:

HEzFEHRRF

RiR BB M HREE - BEE

BIEHAREAE  ARRKE
ZERSWIRBRRBHEE
st RBR - ABERARTH
ETF—EMRFENEERA R
Z IR EABE 2 (53 &
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S 5 i % M SR

For the year ended 315t March, 2008 # £ ~FE/NF=H =1 —H ILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Impairment losses on loans and advances and
receivables

The Group periodically reviews its loans and advances
and receivables to assess whether impairment losses
exist. In determining whether impairment losses should
be recorded in the consolidated income statement, the
Group has individually evaluated its loans and advances
and receivables for impairment after taking into account
the value of the underlying collateral of each borrower,
and the latest financial position of those borrowers in
default of settlement to determine the net present value
of expected future cash inflow. If the financial conditions
of the debtors of the Group were to deteriorate and result
in an impairment of their abilities to repay, additional
impairment losses may be required.

TURNOVER

Turnover represents the net amounts received and
receivable for rice sold to outside customers (less returns
and allowances) and rental income from investment
properties for the year, and is analysed as follows:

Rice sales BAKHEE
Rental income from "EYE 2
investment properties LW A

MRS AR TRE
RERZEFERFR(E)

ERRERAREYRREZRE
&8

AEEEHEZEERRETIA
REWIRIRHES - ATHEEEF
EREEBE - NMREEENESR
W Rt AREERR - AKH
EEBEBERAZABBRAOE
BRAREUHEREZBRARKELI
B 2 B 5K 0 4te i 8 E TR R 2K
RenRAZFHER  stENE
KRG FRIA B e M BR TRAE T TR (B
arfh o MEANEE 2 EBAZE
BOR R 8 2= T 8 BUE #5 A8 B
NZFE  RIFeH 2ERREIN
REERE -

EES

LXRFERRAFEAHERXK
FHEREE 2 W N R RIR
(BMBRER &?ﬁ?ﬂ)%&&ﬁ%
EZHEESWA > AT

THE GROUP
AEE

2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FET
As restated
LE5
555,741 527,853
1,123 1,689

556,864 529,542
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For the year ended 315t March, 2008 # % —FEFE/\4F = H =+ —HI-F&F
BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS ER Rtz BEER

Business segments

For management purposes, the Group is currently
organised into four operating divisions, namely rice
operation, securities investment, property investment
and corporate and others. These divisions are the
basis on which the Group reports its primary segment
information.

Principal activities are as follows:

Rice operation — sourcing, importing, wholesaling,
processing, packaging, marketing and
distribution of rice

Securities investment — investments in equity and debt securities

Property investment — property investment and development

Corporate and others — corporate income and expenses and
other investments
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Notes to the Financial Statements

WF B ik K B AR
For the year ended 315t March, 2008 # % —FEE/\4F=H =+ —H IFF/&F
BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS 6. XXRihEHzHrBEERGE)
(Continued)
Segment information about these businesses is BEZEEG 2 BEENESMNM
presented below: T
Income statement for the year ended 31st March, BE-—EENF=ZA=+—H1
2008 FEZRZR
Rice  Securities Property  Corporate
operation investment investment and others Consolidated
TtER
BRER EHERE MERE Hith¥7% RekE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FE FET FE FET
TURNOVER £
External sales HOMEE 555,741 - 1,123 - 556,864
RESULT £ |
Segment results PEEE 24,579 51,157 5,163 (15,473) 65,426
Finance costs B AR (2,049)
Share of results of B{hEE DT
associates ¥i5 (2,231) - (827) (36,549) (39,607)
Gain on disposal of an MWsE—HBEREZ
associate Wz 653
Profit before taxation BRI 24,423
Taxation I (15,520)
Profit for the year REF R 8,903
Attributable to: AT ERF :
Shareholders of the /NG
Company IR 8,722
Minority interests DY R 181

8,903
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U g s
For the year ended 315t March, 2008 # %2 — FF/NFE=H ==
BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS 6.
(Continued)
Balance sheet at 31st March, 2008
Rice  Securities
operation investment
RREHR BHERE
HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET
ASSETS BE
Segment assets NEEE 236,681 218,889
Interests in associates NG £ 26,547 -
Consolidated total assets 4 AHEARE
LIABILITIES =
Segment liabilities SHEEE 24,999 3,022
Unallocated corporate ADEZ
liabilities 1 3=1
Consolidated total liabilites 4G&ZEE
Other information for the year ended 31st March, 2008
Rice  Securities
operation investment
RRER BHERE
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FE
Additions to property, REWE  BFE
plant and equipment P 5,065 =
Depreciation and mE - BE#SER
amortisation of property, REZHER
plant and equipment i 7,668 -
Amortisation of prepaid BRBERE L
lease payments i3 505 -
Surplus on revaluation of BERENEL
investment properties R = =
Net unrealized loss on REREEATE
financial assets at fair REZEHEEY
value through profit or loss ~ REBEEFE - 28,660
Bad debts written off bl G 907 —

-H I

ERRE 2 BER(E)

R-BENE=A=1+—H2ZE
EAER

Property  Corporate
investment and others Consolidated
TtER
MERE Hith¥5% SEKRE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000
FE FET FET
94,975 267,817 818,362
21,459 292,487 340,493
1,158,855
485 87,087 115,593
32,550
148,143

BE-—ZEEN\F=Z=A=+—HL
FEZHMER

Property  Corporate
investment and others Consolidated
¥R
MERE Htr %K #EekE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
- 12 5,077
2,536 64 10,268
6 - 511
4,410 - 4,410
- - 28,660
- - 907

Golden Resources .
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For the year ended 315t March, 2008 # £ ~FEENF=H =1 —H ILFE

BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS 6. XBRi#EHzIEERE)
(Continued)
Income statement for the year ended 31st March, BE-ZEZEt+tH&=A=+—HL
2007 FEZRER

Rice Securities Property Corporate

operation  investment  investment  and others Consolidated
rER

RKER BRRE NERE Hth %% HFakA

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000

FET FET FET FET FET

As restated As restated
@ E7| mE5|
TURNOVER E2
External sales HIMEE 527853 — 1,689 — 529,542
RESULT EY
Segment results NEEE 33,756 32,787 25,598 19,763 111,904
Finance costs BAFS B AR (362)
Share of results of H{hHE
associates UNGIES (1,859) — (26) (4,763) (6,648)
Profit before taxation BT A A 104,894
Taxation Filg (15,980)
Profit for the year REZGF 88,914
Attributable to: EIAFERF :
Shareholders of the /NG|
Company R 77078
Minority interests DR R ER 11,836
88,914
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W 5 ¥ 2% Bt EE
For the year ended 315t March, 2008 # £ —~FENFE=H =+ —HIFFE
BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS 6. X¥BREz/EERE)
(Continued)
Balance sheet at 31st March, 2007 NR-BEBLtE=A=+—H2Z%&
EAER
Rice Securities Property Corporate
operation  investment  investment  and others Consolidated
TER
RRER BHFRE MERE Hin %% HeEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FHET FET FHET FHET FET
ASSETS BE
Segment assets NEEE 175,022 288,034 98,681 364,517 926,254
Interests in associates B N E R 26,746 — 19,317 136,354 182,417
Consolidated total assets LABEE 1,108,671
LIABILITIES af
Segment liabilities NHEEE 23,921 13,237 9,814 584 47556
Unallocated corporate ADEZ
liabilities rEEE 41,806
Consolidated total liabilites S &EEE 89,362

Other information for the year ended 31st March,

2007

Additions to property, plant KBV E - BE
and equipment TP

Depreciation and ME - WE S
amortisation of property, RxEznE
plant and equipment N

Amortisation of prepaid BRNAERE L
lease payments B

Surplus on revaluation of BREEENE
investment properties LB

Net unrealized gain on RBRERATE
financial assets at fair REZSHEEZ
value through profit or loss K& R EaE

Gain on disposal of an HE—EIREMEL
investment property Yok

Bad debts written off bl i

Rice
operation

RARH
HK$'000
TET

6,843

7500

496

1,190

Securities
investment

BHRE
HK$'000
FET

1,459

BE-EZEtFE=A=1+—HIL
FEZHMER

Property Corporate
investment  and others  Consolidated
PrERE
mERE eSS HekE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET
9,827 5 16,675
2,540 67 10,107
6 — 502
1,780 — 1,780
— — 1,459
24,960 — 24,960
— — 1,190
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S 5 i % M AR

For the year ended 315t March, 2008 # £ ~FEENF=H =1 —H ILFE

BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS
(Continued)

Geographical segments

The Group’'s operations are located in Hong Kong,
elsewhere in the PRC and other regions.

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s
sales by location of markets, irrespective of the origin of
the goods/services:

6. EBRtEzoBEERE)

bbbl

AEEREL PEZEMER
AR E At 3t [ 45 3R 7 o

AREBIRME TS (T RE R
SR REM)ED 2 EXED
o

Turnover by
geographical markets

R HiGE s 2 EERE
2008 2007
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET
As restated
K&
Hong Kong BB 452,214 430,848
Elsewhere in the PRC R A i 96,478 94,026
Others Hfth i [= 8,172 4,668
556,864 529,542

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of
segment assets and additions to property, plant and
equipment, analysed by the geographical areas in which
the assets are located:

AT RIZEEMRERTSE D
ZHBEEREBEENEYE
PR e Rz AT

Carrying amount Additions to property,
of segment assets plant and equipment
PEEE BV - BEHES
FREE &
2008 2007 2008 2007

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
TET TAET FTET THET

Hong Kong BB 694,960 573,665 3,093 16,183
Elsewhere in the PRC R 2 H i i [ 330,764 319,816 1,984 492
Others E bl 133,131 215,190 = —

1,158,855 1,108,671 5,077 16,675
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For the year ended 315t March, 2008 ## ~ EXENFE=H =+ —H I FE
OTHER INCOME 7. HtlA
THE GROUP
rEH
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
As restated
KE5
Interest income on: FMEWA
— Bank deposits — IRITFEH 7322 6,025
— Available-for-sale investments — AT ERERRE
and financial assets at fair =EREATERE
value through profit or loss BrZe@MEE 10,556 11,846
— Others — Hfth 4,260 12,044
22,138 29,915
Net realized gain on disposal of LESREECEERF
financial assets: Ik
— Available-for-sale investments — A HEKE 37,266 1,739
— Financial assets at fair value — RE=REATE
through profit or loss BRIz oREE 36,559 17182
73,825 18,921
Dividend from available-for-sale AIHERE KR EmRR
investments and financial assets ATFEEREZ SREE
at fair value through profit or loss: ZA& B A :
— Listed investments — EmkE 3,203 1,431
— Unlisted investment — ELEMIRE 27 27
Net gain on disposal of property, HEME  MEHKEK
plant and equipment B F WA 2,616 502
Sundry income I 6,926 4,254
Net foreign exchange gain b 5 W a5 58 320 776
109,055 55,826
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For the year ended 315t March, 2008 # £ ~FE/NF=H =1 —H ILFE

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/

BR B A 73

BRBATE B HER (GHA) -

(crediting):
THE GROUP
TEE
2008 2007
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Auditors’ remuneration Z SN B &
Current year REEZ 311 291
Under/(over) provision in FEERETR
prior years (EBEERE) 40 (8)
351 283
Depreciation and amortisation of  ¥% - A S KR E
property, plant and equipment T N 10,268 10,107
Amortisation of prepaid lease ENHEE
payments FRIB 2 5 511 502
Operating lease rentals in respect &iEHEY%E
of rented premises e 2,984 2,813
Bad debts written off AR 8H 907 1,190
Cost of inventories recognised as R AR
expense ZFEEKA 367,190 340,118
Staff costs, including Directors’ BIKA @ B1F
emoluments (note 30) and BEEMe(H7E30) %
retirement benefits schemes RIREFET &
contributions (note 34) R (1 5E34) 70,747 64,686
Interests on bank loans and AR R FRNEH
overdrafts wholly repayable EEZRITERR
within five years BXZHME 81 55
Interests on other loans HEMEF 2 F 8 71 307
Effective interest on convertible AR 5
notes ZEBRFE 1,897 —
2,049 362
Rental income from KEMFEZASHA
investment properties, MBRA T 12,000
net of outgoings of BT (ZETLF -
HK$12,000 (2007: HK$108,000) 108,000 % 7T) (1,111) (1,581)
Net gain on disposal of property, & s  BE#
plant and equipment B R F (2,616) (502)
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For the year ended 315t March, 2008 #f % —FEFE/\4F=H =+ —H I-F&F
TAXATION 9. HE
THE GROUP
REME
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
Current tax: & ETiE
Hong Kong BB 11,514 14,534
Other regions in the PRC Hp B A b (= 3,903 577
15,417 15,111
Under/(over)provision FEERETRS
in prior years: (EBFERE) -
Hong Kong BB 2 (n
Other regions in the PRC B fth i &= 130 273
132 272
Deferred tax (note 23) EIEREIB (K3 23) (29) 587
Taxation attributable to the KRR REKE AR
Company and its subsidiaries FEMLTHIR 15,520 15,980

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 17.5% of the

estimated assessable profit for the year.

Taxation arising in other regions in the PRC is calculated

in accordance with the relevant laws of the PRC.
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For the year ended 315t March, 2008 # £ ~FE/NF=H =1 —H ILFE
TAXATION (Continued) 9. Bm#&E)
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the ANEE Z7HRBEY HESEEWERK
profit per the consolidated income statement as follows: R FEER NN
2008 2007
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit before taxation B A% A g A 24,423 104,894

Tax at the domestic income tax B PTIS BT E 17.6% &1

rate of 17.56% (Note) B2 RIE (K7 4,274 18,356
Tax effect of expenses not AR HIF 2

deductible for tax purpose T2 Mg E 8,646 2,335
Tax effect of income not taxable BARMLZ

for tax purpose WA Z ISR & (3,792) (8,062)
Underprovision in respect of prior  FFE &

years TE 132 272
Tax effect of utilisation of tax HIHE FARER 2 HIBEE

losses/deferred tax assets not SIRERRIBA E 2R

previously recognised o (4,397) (633)
Tax effect of tax losses/deferred ﬂiﬁﬁwuZﬁtEEﬂE/ TR

tax assets not recognised HEEZRGE 1,930 648
Effect of tax exemptions granted  F B B A TS 2 FIEEA

to PRC subsidiaries RIHE (35) (5630)
Effect of different tax rates of TEEM A AR 2 W&

subsidiaries operating in other REEAZ TRBE

jurisdictions TE 1,532 261
Tax effect of share of results of oyl /NI

associates T 6,931 1,163
Others HAfth 299 2,170
Taxation for the year RFEEHIE 15,520 15,980
Note: Hiet -
The domestic tax rate in the jurisdiction where the operation of AREERBTITEEKEMEZ A ER
the Group is substantially based is used. ZIBATEK o
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For the year ended 315t March, 2008 # % —~FEFE/\4F=H =+ —H ILF&F
10. DIVIDENDS 10. B2
(a) Dividends attributable to the year: (a) BRAFEZRE :
2008 2007
HK$°'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Interim dividend paid of EIRE R AR ST 1.2510
1.25 cents per share on %R 4ARY S 1,406,906,460
1,406,906,460 shares (2007: MREE(ZZTZ+F )R
1.25 cents per share on TR 1.251l - HRBRRER
1,406,906,460 shares) 1,406,906,460 f&&T & ) 17,586 17,586
Final dividend proposed of FRERARE G151 -
1.5 cents per share on 48 %28 1,406,906,460
1,406,906,460 shares (2007: MREE(ZZTZ+F : )R
1.5 cents per share on FRR1.51L - REARE
1,406,906,460 shares) 1,406,906,460 f&&T & ) 21,104 21,104
38,690 38,690
The final dividend of 1.5 cents per share for the EEeEZRBRHEHE_ZEZEN\F
year ended 31st March, 2008 has been proposed “A=t—BHIEEEZRERKRE
by the Directors and is subject to approval by the G161 HEEFERERER
shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General RERAE RS FHEE - HEEH
Meeting. This final dividend proposed after the BELREE 7 RHIRE B8 A\ hE
balance sheet date has not been recognised as a HEHERAEE -

liability at the balance sheet date.

74

Golden Resources Annual Report




2008
- no.dﬁﬂmﬂf 9?{}60#! ﬂ

Notes to the Financial Statements

W 55 e 3% Bt EE
For the year ended 315t March, 2008 # £~ FEFNFE=H =+ —HIFFZ
10. DIVIDENDS (Continued) 10. BRE (&)
(b) Dividends approved and paid during the year: (b) RAREEH AERE T2
=N
2008 2007
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Final dividend in respect of RARFEERERENBR
the previous financial year, FHHFE 2 REBRR
approved and paid during the  B&MR 151l - LA
year, of 1.5 cents per share 1,406,906,460 fR+T & (=
on 1,406,906,460 shares TTLF k125100
(2007: 1.25 cents per share A% 1,306,906,460 AXET
on 1,306,906,460 shares) H) 21,104 16,336
Interim dividend in respect of ~RAFEHEFREHBER
the current financial year, AYREE 2 HRE
approved and paid during the &% 1.251l » %A% %
year, of 1.25 cents per share 1,406,906,460 =t & (=
on 1,406,906,460 shares TELF  GR1.2510 -
(2007: 1.25 cents per share 2% #101,406,906,460 A%
on 1,406,906,460 shares) TE) 17,586 17,586
38,690 33,922
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S 5 i % M SR

For the year ended 315t March, 2008 #E ~EENFE=H =1 —H I FF
EARNINGS PER SHARE 11. SRER

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per
share is based on the following data:

SIREARBERFIETIIE
OIS

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET

Earnings for the purposes of both ATESREAARREERF
basic and diluted earnings per share Z & 8,722 77,078
2008 2007

Number of shares: e g :

Weighted average number of shares stE &K
for the purpose of basic earnings ERBR 2 i

per share N5 2
Effect of dilutive potential shares Alge g & 2 R
— Options — RS

1,406,906,460 1,334,303,720

— 12,336,187

Weighted average number of shares stE&K
for the purpose of diluted earnings  BEE&F| 2 K fn
per share N5 2

1,406,906,460 1,346,639,907

No diluted earnings per share has been presented for
the year ended 31st March, 2008 as the exercise price
of the Company's convertible notes was higher than the
average market price of the Company’s share for the
year.

BE-FTT/\F=A=t+-HL
T2 SRIERTILHE -
HRRRER 2 TEERART
B2 SRTH TS ERAS -
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A B i R T 5T
For the year ended 31st March, 2008 # £ — FE/NF=H=—1—HILF/&
12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. Y% BREMEENEE
For the year ended 31st March, 2008 BE-_ZSENF=A=+—H1
FE
Factory
premisesin  Furniture, Motor
Land and elsewhere in fixturesand  Plant and vehicles and
buildings the PRC  equipment  machinery vessels Total
PEAMBE KA RE  HERS
THREEF  BEUE e kRE AREREE At

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET

THE GROUP r5E

CcoST K&

At 1st April, 2007 RZFZ+FMA-A 94,375 13,134 34,696 98,496 8,900 249,601

Additions AE - - 352 545 4,180 5,077

Disposals/written off HE /e (6,519) = (208) (371) (3,474) (10,572)
Exchange rate adjustments JER ;% - 1,238 455 1,854 261 3,808

R-ZFFN\F=H

At 31st March, 2008 =t-A 87,856 14,372 35,295 100,524 9,867 247914
DEPRECIATION, e

AMORTISATION AND BHR

IMPAIRMENT HE
At 1st April, 2007 RZZELFMA—A 37034 9,140 26,729 85,402 5,964 164,269
Provided for the year TEEHE 2,962 628 2,246 2,720 1,712 10,268
Eliminated on disposals/ K& /s

written off E2dE (1,368) - (174) (371) (2,798) (4,711)
Exchange rate adjustments JER 3% - 896 283 1,318 177 2,674

R-ZFFN\F=H
At 31st March, 2008 E=F 38,628 10,664 29,084 89,069 5,055 172,500

NET BOOK VALUES REFE
RZZE\E=R
At 31st March, 2008 == 49,228 3,708 6,211 11,455 4,812 75,414
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B i % T 5T
For the year ended 315t March, 2008 #E ~EENFE=H =1 —HILFF
12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 12. Y% BERBREEE)
For the year ended 31st March, 2007 BE-EZEtLtHE=A=+—HL
FE
Factory
premises in Furniture, Motor
Land and elsewhere in  fixtures and Plantand  vehicles and
buildings the PRC  equipment  machinery vessels Total
hEAMEE KL XE HRERS
THREF  BRDE R& kR RERME @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TR TR TR TR T

THE GROUP PN |
CcosT A&
At 1st April, 2006 RZZZ EMA—H 84,682 50,060 34,722 136,325 11,5639 317328
Additions RE 9,693 - 895 5,494 593 16,675
Disposals/written off e/ M - = (412) (2,491) (1,961) (4,864)
Disposal of subsidiaries e/ HEHBAT — (37608) (757) (41,891) (1,416) (81,672)
Exchange rate adjustments  EX#ZE - 682 248 1,059 145 2,134
RZZTLE=R
At 31st March, 2007 == 94,375 13,134 34,696 98,496 8,900 249,601
DEPRECIATION, wE-
AMORTISATION AND BHER
IMPAIRMENT HE
At 1st April, 2006 RZZE EMA—H 34,079 36,526 25,257 120,967 7792 224,621
Provided for the year TEERE 2,955 578 2,422 2,711 1,441 10,107
Eliminated on disposals/ NEE /s
written off B - - (338) (1,961) (1,936) (4,235)
Eliminated on disposal of ~ RHE /HEHEAT
subsidiaries B E - (28,434) (757) (37,054) (1,416) (67,661)
Exchange rate adjustments JER % - 470 145 739 83 1,437
RZEZt+E=R
At 31st March, 2007 =t-H 37034 9,140 26,729 85,402 5,964 164,269
NET BOOK VALUES REFE
RZZZLE=R
At 31st March, 2007 ==F 57341 3,994 7967 13,094 2,936 85,332
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S 5 i % M SR

For the year ended 315t March, 2008 # £ ~FE/NF=H =1 —H ILFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

12. W% BERBRREE)

The net book value of properties shown above i E 2 EREEER ¢
comprises:
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Land and buildings situated in UREBZ TH KR
Hong Kong: B
Held under long lease REIE 2R 19,840 20,431
Held under medium-term lease AR HiE S 5,708 11,142
Freehold land and building situated — AZREE AIMBIR 2 5K A
outside Hong Kong RS NIETF 3,733 3,820
Building situated in Hong Kong NRBEBZIETF 15,923 17,747
Building situated outside Hong Kong A& LASME R 2 5 4,024 4,201
Factory premises situated outside LR BEBAINZ
Hong Kong: MEME
Held under medium-term lease AR EERER 3,708 3,994
52,936 61,335
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 13. REWHE
THE GROUP
KEE
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Balance at beginning of the year  WRE4) 2 &84 23,480 47900
Disposal HE — (26,200)
Surplus on revaluation EhZ &% 4,410 1,780
Balance at end of the year RER 2 1EF 27,890 23,480

The investment properties were revalued at 31st
March, 2008 on an open market value basis by Dudley

Surveyors Limited, independent Chartered Surveyors.
The revaluation surplus of HK$4,410,000 (2007:

HK$1,780,000) has been credited
income statement.

to the consolidated

REME 2 HERKBB ST
Bl EEMERITRIZRA R A R
—EENF=ZA=+—H2Z2AMHA
METAEZEFGBIIL - EET
KFTEE 2 & #4,410,000% T
(ZZZ £ 1,780,000/ 70 )
ERGERERAFTA °
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S 5 i % M SR

For the year ended 315t March, 2008 # £~ FFENF=H =+ —HIFFZ

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Co

Dudley Surveyors Limited is a
Kong Institute of Surveyors,

ntinued)

member of The Hong
and has appropriate

qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation of

similar properties in the relevant locations. The valuation,

which conforms to International Valuation Standards, was

arrived at by reference to market
prices for similar properties.

evidence of transaction

All of the Group's investment properties are held for

renting out under operating leases.

The analysis of the Group’s investment properties is as

follows:

13. REYE(E)

BATREMERARRERA
EBMEEEE s — YRAR
MZBUMEREETEHAGSE
B REo HEER - EETIR
BEEREEE - 2Z8LUME
KRB 2 5B IRETT °

AEERMBREDEIFANE
BEAOMEM -

REBZEREMEZ DHWT

2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Situated in Hong Kong: URE
Held under long lease NRHEEHERER 23,930 19,910
Situated outside Hong Kong: R BB AIMD R :
Held under medium-term lease AR ERE 2% H 3,960 3,570
27,890 23,480
INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 14. HIBD TR
THE COMPANY
EIN
2008 2007
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FHET
Unlisted shares, at cost JE ETMS - REANE 280,229 280,229
Advances to subsidiaries AN NG 663,151 618,681
943,380 898,910

In the opinion of the Directors, advances to subsidiaries

are not repayable in the coming twelve months.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of

advances to subsidiaries approximate their fair values.

EERR - BRUKHBARFEAR
ARARE+_EAEE -

EERRERMMEBRRIAZER
E{ERE A FERS -
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St 5 i 3% B RE

For the year ended 315t March, 2008 # £ ~FEENF=H =1 —H ILFE

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at
31st March, 2008 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

WEARER

Aland Limited
HEHERAR

Beef Bow! Limited

EHZRREEERAT

Better Choice Investments
Limited

Better Star Limited

Billion Trade Development
Limited
KEERBRAA

City Court Properties
Limited

Place of
incorporation/
operation

i SRR

Hong Kong/PRC
B/ HE

Hong Kong
BE

British Virgin Islands
ERREAES

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
EBRAHE/EE

Hong Kong
BE

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
EBEAEE/EE

Issued and fully
paid up share capital

ERTRAZRE

2 ordinary shares
of HK$1 each
BREE 1 BT LR
2

20,000 ordinary
shares of HK$10
each

BREMGE10BTLE
% 20,000 %

1 ordinary share
of US$1
HE1ET ERR
&

1 ordinary share
of US$1
EE1ETEBR
&

1 ordinary share
of HK$1
HE1BT ERR
&

21 ordinary shares
of US$1 each

BREE1ETZER
21K

14. MBATER(Z)

ARAN=FENF=A=1—
A2 EEHBARZHENT -

Proportion of nominal
value of issued share

capital held
by the Group
FEEREE
ERITRAESLE

2008 2007
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

Gualden Resources Annual Report

Principal activities

TEXR

Property investment

NERE

Investment holding

RERR

Investment holding

BRI

Property investment

NERE

Investment

"&

Investment holding
RERR

81
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For the year ended 315t March, 2008 # £~ FFENF=H =+ —HIFFZ

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

HWEARER

Citydragon Resources
Limited

Cost Logistics Limited

Golden Fidelity Holdings
Limited
LERERRAF

Golden Resources China
(Group) Limited
SRTE(SE)ERAR

Golden Resources
Development Limited

RAFRERDA

Golden Resources Holdings

Limited

82

Place of
incorporation/
operation

i E R

British Virgin Islands
SEREAES

British Virgin Islands
RRRLES

Hong Kong
BB

Samoa

BE:

Hong Kong
0

British Virgin Islands
RERLES

Issued and fully
paid up share capital

ERTRABRRA

1 ordinary share
of US$1
EE1ET EBR
/3

1 ordinary share
of US$1
EE1ET EER
it

2 ordinary shares
of HK$1 each
BREME1 AT ER
R 2 8k

1 ordinary share
of US$1
HE1ETEBR
it

2,000,000 non-voting
deferred shares* of
HK$1 each and 2
ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

SREE1ATZE
RERELR
13 *2,000,000 & &
BREE 1 BT
Hk2 K

21,268 ordinary
shares of US$1
each

BREB1ETZ LR
121,268 %

14. MEBEATER(E)

Proportion of nominal
value of issued share

capital held
by the Group
rEEEE
ERTRAESLE
2008 2007
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

Golden Resources Annual Report

Principal activities

TEER

Investment holding

RAZR

Investment holding

RERR

Property holding
RENE

Investment holding and
property holding
REBRRFAME

Overseas sourcing,
processing,
packaging,
marketing, sales and
distribution of rice

RN R B
% H#H- HERD
HEK

Investment holding

RERR
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For the year ended 315t March, 2008 # £ ~FEENF=H =1 —H ILFE

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

MELTER

Golden Resources Rice
Industries Limited

Golden Resources Rice
Trading Limited
SRERREBAF

Golden Resources
Warehouse Limited

ERAXEREARAH

Goldsom Development
Limited
eHERERAR

GR Environmental
Development Company
Limited

ERERERBRAA

High Super Enterprises
Limited

Place of
incorporation/
operation

ELIVEE3:ck

British Virgin Islands
B ey

Hong Kong
Bt

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
Bt

British Virgin Islands
RBRAES

Issued and fully
paid up share capital

ERTRAZRA

1,000 ordinary shares
of US$1 each

BREE 1 X2 ER
f% 1,000 8%

260,000 ordinary
shares of HK$10
each

BREE10BTLE
A% 260,000 f%

1,000 ordinary shares
of HK$10 each

BREMGE10BTLE
AR 1,000

100 ordinary shares
of HK$1 each

BREE 1 AT LR
%100 &

3 ordinary shares
of HK$1 each
BREE1ETZ LR
M3

1 ordinary share
of US$1
BE1ET ERR
[

14. MBATER(Z)

capital held
by the Group
FEBRE
ERTRAEAL R

2008 2007
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% —

Proportion of nominal
value of issued share

Gualden Resources Annual Report

Principal activities

FERHK

Investment holding

RER

Importing, wholesaling
and local purchasing
of rice (Registered
rice stockholder and
wholesaler)

AR - HERERMERE
RR(BRFRERR
KHER)

Warehouse operation
RERE

Investment holding

RAMR

Provision of logistics
services

RAEMRART

Investment holding

REER

83
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For the year ended 315t March, 2008 # £~ FFENF=H =+ —HIFFZ

14. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

14. MEBEATER(E)

Proportion of nominal

Place of value of issued share
incorporation/ Issued and fully capital held
Name of subsidiary operation paid up share capital by the Group Principal activities
rEERE
WEAR AR i/ e ERTREBRRE ERTRAEMELE FTEEE
2008 2007
Lee Loy Company Limited Hong Kong 160 ordinary shares 100% 100% Property holding
FREB AR & of HK$100 each Y=ty
BREE100BTLE
iR 160 R
Master Tone Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares 100% 100% Money lending
XBBR AT BA of HK$1 each EE
BREB1 AT LR
12 %
Paklink International Limited  British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share 100% 100% Investment holding
EBREAES of US$1 REER
EENET WA
it
Red Token Investments British Virgin Islands 1,600 ordinary shares 63.75% 63.75% Investment holding
Limited RERIAE of US$1 each REZR
BREB1 XTI ER
f 1,600 &
Reo Developments Limited®  British Virgin Islands/ 21,451 ordinary 100% 100% Investment holding
Hong Kong shares of US$1 REZK
RBETES/BE each
BREB1ETZER
221,451 &
Ringo Resources Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of 100% 100% Investment
B ey US$1 &®E
HE 11Xt EBR
&
Shantou SEZ Golden PRC *RMB10,300,000 100% 100% Processing, packaging,
Resources Grain Co., Ltd. 10,300,000 AR marketing, sales and

WBREERESRAY
BRAA

Golden Resources Annual Report

distribution of rice
RE 8% W BE
RAERA
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For the year ended 315t March, 2008 # £ ~FEENF=H =1 —H ILFE

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

MELTER

Shantou SEZ Golden

Resources Rice Company

Limited **

B ERESRAEER

AR

Sun Kai Yip (Shanghai)

Industrial Investment Co.,

Ltd.

MEX(LB) IXRERR

A7)

Tresplain Investments
Limited
BiEATREBRAA

Yuen Loong & Company
Limited
RETERAR

Place of
incorporation/
operation

it ExnH

PRC
ik

PRC
e

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
EBRAHE/BE

Hong Kong
BB

Issued and fully
paid up share capital

ERTRAZRE

*US$4,579,314
*4,579,314% T

*US$10,000,000
10,000,000 T

2 ordinary shares of
US$1 each

BREE 1 X2 ER
2 B

50,000 non-voting
deferred shares* of
HK$100 each and 2
ordinary shares of
HK$100 each

BREBE100ETL
BEREEZELER
% *50,000 i R B
EE100# T2 LR
2%

14. MBATER(Z)

Proportion of nominal
value of issued share

capital held
by the Group
rREEE
ERTRAEELE

2008 2007
65% 65%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

Golden Resources Annual Report

Principal activities

TEEHK

Processing, packaging,
marketing, sales and
distribution of rice

R B R HE
RAHERAK

Investment and
investment holding

RERRERK

Trade marks holding
RARE

Importing and re-
exporting of rice
(Registered rice

stockholder)
ADOREORK (BT
)
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For the year ended 315t March, 2008 # £ —FF/\4F

14. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

##

Other than Reo Developments Limited which is directly
held by the Company, all other subsidiaries are indirectly

held by the Company.

The deferred shares, which are not held by the Group,
practically carry no rights to dividends or to receive notice
of or to attend or vote at any general meeting of the
subsidiary or to participate in any distribution on winding-
up. The Group has been granted an option by the holders
of the deferred shares to acquire these shares at a

nominal amount.

Paid-up registered capital

Shantou SEZ Golden Resources Rice Company Limited is

a Sino-foreign joint venture.

The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of

the particulars of all subsidiaries will be of excessive

length and therefore the above list only contains the

particulars of those subsidiaries which principally affect

the results or assets and liabilities of the Group.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities
at the end of the year.

86
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14. B ARIRER(E)

¥ Reo Developments
Limited DB AR R EZE A
2O BB AR BEAA
AIFBERA o

* bR E AR 40 3 3F R AR S B
B ZERMER L EEKE
BB~ S ERZ P B 1 B AR R
REZBE  HHFEZKRE
ERZAE LRE - RRNEH
BRAABERKLSEEES -
AEE DR L RTER D 255
BART AR BlA@
ZFHAANSBARERE L
AEFER LD ©

# EBEEMER

#  JIBERERERSFREERAD
RIRFIEERERE -

EFeR /MG AEE 2B
REZEABIHBEBNITE -
PRIAZR B RS AR B 2 4K
BEENBBREEXEZMER
A5 -

BB A
%ﬁZ%%ﬁ

E’EJ\DHTﬁ{E{—JE
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For the year ended 315t March, 2008 # £ ~FEENF=H =1 —H ILFE

15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

15. BEZE QA TER

THE GROUP
rEH
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Listed and unlisted investments: i &IELFTIRE
Share of net assets BHEEFE 200,798 45,953
Goodwill on acquisition W FTEE A 2 P2 22,211 15,886
223,009 61,839
Advances to associates FEUR B X R FRIR 117,484 120,578
340,493 182,417
Share of net assets of an B(E—RREB Lm o
associate listed in Hong Kong ERRZEBEFRE 119,345 =
Market value of shares held in an P —BRES L2
associate listed in Hong Kong B A a2 hmE 204,000 —
Notes: Hiat
(a) Included in advances to associates is an amount of (a) BEREHERRRBRENUS—

approximately HK$7,069,000 (2007: HK$6,926,000)
which has been secured by certain shares of another
associate. The amount is interest-free and will not be
repayable in the coming twelve months.

The balances of advances to associates as at 31st
March, 2008 are unsecured, interest-free and will not be
repayable in the coming twelve months. The Directors
consider that the carrying amounts of advances to
associates approximate their fair values.

The balances of advances to associates as at 31st March,
2007 included an amount of HK$11,700,000 which was
interest-bearing at Hong Kong Dollars prime
rate plus 2% and was fully repaid during the year.

unsecured,

Guolden Resourees Annual Report

B & QR 2 & T RGO 1EE
2 FRIEH 57,069,000 0 (=
TEZ L 6,926,000 7T) °
ZERBRRERBARKR
+EARNERE -

EA:Q?\? NE=A=+—HBE
B & R R FRIE 2 R 58 AR
2B RBANKRKT @
HWE}E E=RAENEE

ARIEZ RHEEREAFE
*E%Tf»

R_ZTEZE+LHF=A=+—H
WA DNRRBERE %
#911,700,000 7% 7t 2 5t & (F
REETHEBRMNENED Z
=) B R AREE AR
BEZE -
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For the year ended 315t March, 2008 # £ —FF/\4F

H="1—HILFE

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 15. BERTER(E)

Notes: (Continued) KBiaE - (&)

(d) Investments in certain associates were in the form of (d) MRETEMZEATZIRETIANK
equity and loans from the Group and other shareholders SEEREMRRIZBEERZSE
in accordance with respective percentages of equity BE AT &BZRER DA
shareholding in these associates. Investments in the form BARERZHFRIEL - UE
of loans were comparatively more significant than those REAELE 2B S BE UMK
in the form of equity, so that the entire amounts were AEREE 2R E AKX Al
treated as quasi-capital. Under these circumstances, 2ELREEE BEMRK o X
losses incurred by these associates were shared by EBERT  KREBR@EET
the Group to the extent that the losses did not exceed BEHERARERKEBTEZ
the aggregate of their equity and loan investments. ;Z%Hﬁﬁ%@jgﬂé o JiE L ot
The relevant amounts of share of losses of associates NEIFBBE#HLBEARE
included in the advances to associates are approximately B2 EMBE5E4 /455,831,000
HK$5,831,000 (2007: HK$3,246,000). BIT(ZZEZ+HF : 3,246,000

L) °

(e) The Directors consider that the recoverable amounts of e) EBEERANR_ZTEENF=
interests in associates approximate their carrying amounts =4=F 5?%@?%5274&(
as at 31st March, 2008. bR ERMERS °

The movement in the goodwill of associates during the ERNBANT RS EE ;M

year is set out below: T

THE GROUP
AEH
2008 2007
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FEIT

Balance at beginning of the year  RAFE¥ 2 &tk 15,886 15,886

Additions N 6,325 —

Balance at end of the year REFR 2 454 22,211 165,886

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of %?.w?%ﬂp%’ Al Bz RHEE R

goodwill of associates approximate their fair values. NERSE °

88
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For the year ended 315t March, 2008 # £ —~FFE/NF=H =1 —H ILFE

15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 15. BEATIER(E)
Particulars of the Group's principal associates at 31st RZEZENF=ZA=+—H" ' &
March, 2008 are as follows: EBZFEBERAFBUOT

Proportion of
nominal value

Form of Place of of issued
business incorporation/  Issued and fully share capital held
Name of associate structure operation paid up share capital by the Group  Principal activities
REERACRTRE
HENRER BEGEE il EENE ERORHETRA FEfht TEEK
2008 2007
Dragon Fortune Ltd. Incorporated British Virgin 57895 ordinary shares of 28.00% 28.00% Investment holding
Baunav Islands US$1 each RAZR
AEREES  BREE1ETZ
LiER578%5 %
GR Engineering Limited  Incorporated British Virgin 10,000 ordinary shares of ~ 40.00% — Investment holding
AL Islands US$1 each REER
AERREE  BREAE1FTILER
10,000 &

GR Vietnam Holdings Incorporated Bermuda/Hong ~ 2,824,643,047 ordinary 24.07% — Trading and distribution
Limited (formerly Baunav Kong shares of HK$0.01 each of electronic products
known as 139 Holdings BRE/EE  SRERIOBETZLAR and other merchandise
Limited) 2,824,643,047 and securities

t@ﬁﬁxﬁ RAR (A investment and trading

ERBBRAR) BEEREHETER &
PREREEEH
Loyal Brilliant Limited Incorporated Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares of ~ 48.00% — Importing and exporting
REBRAT] AL Bk HK$1 each of candy or candy-
SREE BT EER related products
10,000% AR R ARG ERE
B Em

Sirinumma Company Incorporated Thailand 4,600,000 ordinary shares ~ 40.00%  40.00% Sourcing of rice

Limited AL e of Baht 10 each BERX
BREE10R% 2 ERR
4,600,000
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For the year ended 315t March, 2008 # £ —~FENFE=H =+ —HIFFE
INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 15. B&NATIRER(E)

Proportion of

nominal value
Form of Place of of issued
business incorporation/  Issued and fully share capital held
Name of associate structure operation paid up share capital by the Group  Principal activities
AEERERRITRA
HENRER BELE i/ g%% ERTRARRK Efht = TEEK
2008 2007
Siripattana Rice Company  Incorporated Thailand 20,000,000 ordinary 49.00% 49.00% Processing, packaging,
Limited AL RE shares of Baht 10 each marketing, sales and
(20,000,000 ordinary distribution of rice
shares of Baht 6.8 each RE - BF - EBHE HER
fully paid) DEHEK
GREE 10R% 2 LRk
20,000,000 % (B ixE
{E6.8% &2 BT LR
20,000,000%)
Supreme Development Incorporated Hong Kong/ 15,001,500 ordinary 41.16%  41.16% Manufacturing and sale
Company Limited* L Hong Kong shares of HK$1 each of plastic bags
BARmRARAR* and the PRC ~ BREE 1 AT ERR FEREEERE
BB/ BER 15,001,500 %
i
Wellight Development Incorporated Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares of 3750% 3750% Investment holding
Limited a1 AVA % HK$1 each REER
BREE1 AT EBR
1,000 %
MRARA(RINEBAE  Incorporated PRC HKD17,000,000 48.00% — Manufacturing and
AL HE 17000,00077C trading of confection
EERBERBERR
@ Supreme Development Company Limited has a wholly- & BAMMBERAREE —E

owned subsidiary, Delux Arts Development Limited,
which is incorporated in Hong Kong and engaged in
manufacturing and sale of plastic bags in Hong Kong and

2EMBARSEERARA
AERBBEMAZERE
BRPBEREEENFEELEH

the PRC. R
The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of EEGRBNEAREE 2 &
the particulars of all associates would be of excessive NElz B HEERRITE -
length and therefore the above list only contains the FTASR B R i ¥ AN R B 2 S4B 5k
particulars of those associates which principally affect EENBBEEEEXEZHBER
the results or assets and liabilities of the Group. G e
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For the year ended 315t March, 2008 # % —FEE/\4F=H =+ —H IFF/&F
15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 15. B&ENTER(E)
The summarised financial information in respect of the NEFH 7 BN 7 2 B E IR
Group's associates is set out below: FMF
2008 2007
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Total assets wEE 1,720,769 1,017,846
Total liabilities FEN=NE (897,657) (831,403)
823,112 186,443
Minority interests DB R (89,032) (62,707)
734,080 123,736
Group's share of net assets of NS 3
associates Bt A A B EFE 200,798 45,953
Revenue g 1,108,473 694,561
Loss for the year REFEE (160,876) (16,192)
Group's share of results of NEFERER 2B
associates for the year LN | (39,607) (6,648)
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For the year ended 315t March, 2008 # £ —~FENFE=H =+ —HIFFE
16. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 16. OHERERE
Available-for-sale investments comprise: AHERERTE
THE GROUP
rEE
2008 2007
HK$000 HK$'000
FEx FEIT
Equity securities: BRH#ES
Listed in Hong Kong REB LT 42,803 76,300
Unlisted 3E LT 45,871 44,034
88,674 120,334
Debt securities: BFES
Unlisted LM — 11,506
88,674 131,840
Market value of listed securities LEHESTE 42,803 76,300
Quoted value of unlisted debt FLEMEBES
securities wmE - 11,506
The fair values of listed equity investments are based tilEmEEZ A ETIRED
on quoted market prices and the fair values of unlisted BHREBTE  MIELTERHRES
debt securities are based on recent transaction prices ZATENDREARELSS 2SR/
or quoted values provided by counterparty financial BWEMEHE AR B RE
institutions. The Group’s unlisted equity securities are BT o ERNMGETIELTIRGMES
stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if ZEEBEATERMAEZBRERE
any, as the range of reasonable fair value estimates HEEE EERAKGEASEH
for these unlisted investments is significant and the BEHEATE REAEFHBZIE
Directors consider that their fair values cannot be TR EAETIIREANALR - AT

measured reliably. R B R E R R B R AT RVE -
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W 55 e 3% Bt EE
For the year ended 315t March, 2008 # % —FEE/\4F=H =+ —H IFF/&F
17. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 17. EAHEERER
The Group's prepaid lease payments represent prepaid NREFBZFENBEREAINE R
operating lease payments in respect of leasehold land. Azt ZENEERER
I8 o
An analysis of the net book values is as follows: FREMAERBEZEEFED
war -
THE GROUP
AEE
2008 2007
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
Leasehold land situated in Hong Kong: A EBUEZEE 2 L
Held under medium-term lease AR HEAE AR 15,225 15,613
Leasehold land situated outside NI BB AN [E LA E 22
Hong Kong: BhH 2
Held under medium-term lease AR EE 2B H 4,421 4,153
Held under long lease REIE 2R 312 318
19,958 20,084
18. INVENTORIES 18. FE&
THE GROUP
REHE
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
At cost: B AE -
Raw materials RA 85,011 47075
Finished goods BIRK fh 10,201 11,738
Consumable stores E1FHAE M 7,385 7,357
102,597 66,170
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For the year ended 315t March, 2008 # £~ FE/NFE=H =+ —HIFFE
TRADE DEBTORS 19. EWESIRIE

The Group allows an average credit period of 30-60 days
to its trade customers. The following is an aging analysis
of trade debtors at the balance sheet date:

AEEREEZEPIEEFH 30
Z60B ZEHHER - UTAEK
BIEREREER 2RO ¢

THE GROUP
rEHE

2008 2007
HK$000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Within 30 days 30BA 32,465 14,757
31-60 days 31HZ60H 14,442 17,348
61-90 days 61 HZ90H 6,250 8,079
Over 90 days #1890 H 3,669 3,265
56,826 43,449

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade
debtors approximate their fair values.

The Group assesses the credit status and imposes credit
limits for potential new customers in accordance with
the Group’s credit policy. The credit limits are closely
monitored and subject to periodic reviews.

As at 31st March, 2008, trade debtors over 90 days
amounted to HK$3,669,000 were past due but not
impaired as the balances were related to debtors with
sound repayment history and no recent history of default.

EERRERRESRBAZREE
EEREREE -

AEBFZBEHETP ZEER
RARIBEAEERE 2 EEBE
REEFER - RFEEBRNIXE
R NEE LR

R-BZENF=A=+—H " [E
WEZRETREBEBELTRE
I 8 Rk (B /O R 5K 7% 3,669,000 78
7T AEREBRA RFERT
WBRIA -

The movements in the provision for impairment of FRREREEBE T W

doubtful debts during the year are set out below: T
THE GROUP
AEE

2008 2007

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Balance at the beginning of the year RE¥] 2 484 342 —

Impairment losses recognised on R IEWRE RN FERARE

trade receivables [E518 907 1,190

Amount written off as uncollectible  #$4 /A7~ a] Y @] & 7B (24) (848)

Balance at the end of the year RELR 7 ek 1,225 342
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21.

WE 5 e 3R B G
For the year ended 31st March, 2008 # % —~ FF/NF=H=—+—H I FF
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 200 AEERELAFEEEZS
PROFIT OR LOSS MEE
THE GROUP
KEH
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Equity securities: RHFES
— Listed in Hong Kong — REBEM 91,603 61,690
— Listed outside Hong Kong — REBLAIMEE ETH 16,501 15,623
108,104 77213
Unlisted debt securities: ELETERES
— Outside Hong Kong — RBEBLAIMBE 47,809 72,796
155,913 150,009
Market value of listed securities rFhEsEmE 108,104 77213
Quoted value of unlisted debt IEETHERS B H
securities HE 47,809 72,796

The fair values of listed equity investments are based
on quoted market prices and the fair values of unlisted
debt securities are based on recent transaction prices
or quoted values provided by counterparty financial
institutions.

TRADE CREDITORS

The following is an aging analysis of trade creditors at
the balance sheet date:

21.

ik ESH 2 A FETDRET
BHREEE  MIFLHEBES
ZRFEDREAER S 2SR
B PTIR 2 RO A (B Sk B
BIE -

B E 5 IRE

UTRENEZRBEREERZ
FREC DA

THE GROUP
AEH

2008 2007
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within 30 days 30HA 6,749 2,583
31-60 days 31 HE60H 36 134
61-90 days 61 HZ90H 85 80
Over 90 days BB 90 H 5 116
6,875 2,913

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade
creditors approximate their fair values.

EERRRNESRAZKREE
HEERNFERES -
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For the year ended 315t March, 2008 # £~ FE/NFE=H =+ —HIFFE
22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 22. fTHE€mIA
THE GROUP
AEE
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Other financial liabilities — other  Hith & EFE — Hb4T
derivatives (not under hedge S TEGEBRYE
accounting) &)
Interest rate swap (Note 1) RSB (HaE 1) 245 =
Listed equity and foreign AR
currency forward contracts INERHIE X
(Note 2 and 3) (B2 % 3) 2,772 =
3,017 —
Notes: Bzt -
1. Interest rate swap 1. F %= 45 5

The notional principal amount of outstanding interest rate
swap at 31st March, 2008 was US$5,000,000. Under the
interest rate swap agreement, the Group receives interest
accrued daily at a fixed rate of 7.56% per annum provided
that on that day the value of the 30 year US Dollar interest
rate swap rate is greater than or equal to the value of
the 10 year US Dollar interest rate swap rate. The Group
receives no interest if otherwise. The agreement will
mature in August 2015.

2. Listed equity forward contract 2.

The notional principal amount of outstanding listed equity
forward contract at 31st March, 2008 was approximately
HK$35,357,000. Under this forward contract, the
Group buys shares in HSBC Holdings PLC at a price of
HK$124.4945 per share. The contract will mature in
November 2008.

3. Foreign currency forward contract 3.

The notional principal amount of outstanding foreign
currency forward contract at 31st March, 2008 was
US$2,000,000. Under this forward contract, the Group
will sell US Dollar and buy Turkish New Lira (“TRY") at
the exchange rate of US$1 to TRY1.2836. The contract
will mature in September 2008.

R-ZZEENE=ZA=1+—8 -
KFRZAEREH ZEAS
75,000,000 7T ° 1R % 5%
B HHE NS REBE
B & 30 F L R R = msk
HER10EXTEHFIE - 8
A& B YER PA B FE S F K 7.6%
FTEZHE  BRIASE®ETE
BFE - ZAHN_T—AF
J\AEIH -

ERRAEHREN

R-_EZENF=ZA=+—8 "
KFREZ EMBRANEHBEOZ
& & AN & # 535,357,000
L BIBLERBEN  AEE
LA 5 A% 1 18 124.4945 7 JT B8
NELIERBR AR ZG °
ZEAHN—_ZEENFE+—AF
Hy o

SNEEHMEXN

RZZEZENE=ZA=1+—8 -
KEBZINERBENB
2,000,000 7T ° 1R ¥ It & 5
A4 AEBEBAIETHE
128361 T HEHE N 2 H
EHHETKBEAFTLIELE
He ZAEHOR_ZZN\FANA
FIH -

The above derivatives are measured at fair value at BtTESBMTANREERZ
balance sheet date. Their fair values are determined ~YEFE - BERAFELRE
BEILAREEB 2 mIG®REM
EE -

based on the quoted market prices for equivalent
instruments at the balance sheet date.
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For the year ended 315t March, 2008 # £ ~FENF=H =1 —H ILFE

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities

recognised and movements thereon during the current

and prior reporting periods.

23. EEHEEE

T ARAR S 0 R R
RRR Y X EEEHIEA E R
HEH -

THE GROUP
rEE
Accelerated tax
depreciation

IER BT E

HK$'000

FET

At 31st March, 2006 RZZEZERF=A=1+—H 2,103
Charge to income for the year MBaARFE RS 597
At 31st March, 2007 RZZEZTLF=A=+—H 2,700
Credit to income for the year STARFEEF Yz (29)
At 31st March, 2008 RZZEZENF=A=+—H 2,671

At the balance sheet date, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$12,610,000 (2007:
HK$9,802,000) available for offset against future profits.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
such losses due to the unpredictability of future profit

streams.

ADVANCES FROM MINORITY SHAREHOLDERS

The balances of advances as at 31st March, 2007 were
unsecured, non-interest bearing and were fully repaid

during the year.

REEB - NEEFAERER
RBMz ABRARBEENA
12,610,000 (=TT L F ¢
9,802,000 7T) ° EARAEFEE 7%
MIBEE AU HERRBN B E
o B ERRZEEEAE
EFRIEEE -

24. BEADBBRIE

R-BZLF=A=+—HZE
BT EER - R EALNAF
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For the year ended 315t March, 2008 # £~ FFENF=H =+ —HIFFZ

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On 30th October, 2007, the Company issued convertible
notes (“the Notes”) amounting to HK$85,500,000. The
Notes will mature on 30th October, 2010 (the “Maturity
Date”) and bear interest at a rate of 4% per annum
payable semi-annually.

The Notes can be converted into ordinary shares of
the Company at any time following the date of issue of
the Notes until the date fourteen (14) days before (but
excluding) the Maturity Date at the initial conversion
price fixed at HK$0.9 per share, subject to adjustments
and provided that the conversion price shall not be less
than the par value of a share.

The holders of the Notes (the “Holders”) are not entitled
to vote at any meetings of the Company. The exercise of
the conversion rights by the Holders shall be subject to
the consent in writing of the Company.

The Notes contain two components, liability and equity
elements. The effective interest rate of the liability
component of the convertible notes is 4.5% per annum.
The Directors had assessed the fair value of the early
redemption rights and considered that the fair value is
insignificant.

25.

TRRRE

ARBIR=ZETLFE+A=1+H
%% 1785,5600,000 7% T 2 7] # B%
EBR(IEE] ZEEBR=ZT—
TZE+A=ZFTRH(EHA D
H - FIERABFHELI% RNEGF
FXf -

EREARBTEHEREIHA
(ETEFEE R TEA B[R
BERZESER09BITZIF
ABMEATRB)LE/ART]
ZEBED  EABRETFER
AP EE °

SEFEATHBADEERA
RBZEFMARELERE - BIEH
BATERRRAKAREER

R e

REEEEERERMED o A
BRREBEEESN 2 ERFHE
B45%  EEETHREED
BZARBELRBEAARBLT
BE -
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For the year ended 315t March, 2008 # £ ~FENF=H =1 —H ILFE

CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

The movements in the liability component of the

convertible notes during the year are set out below:

25. TERBREREE)

%@JZZD—F :

2008 2007
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Balance at the beginning of the year R&¥] 2 &tk = —
Proceeds from issuance BITRTS 5R 85,500 —
Equity component = E 1D (1,187) =
Liability component at issuance REETREBERD
of the notes BEHSHD 84,313 —
Effective interest (Note 8) BERFE(Hi7F8) 1,897 —
Balance at the end of the year RELR 2 48R 86,210 —
SHARE CAPITAL B A<
Number of
shares of
HK$0.10 each
SREE0.10E T HK$'000
ZBE FET
Authorised AR
At 1st April, 2006 and 31st RZZBEZRFONA—BK
March, 2007 —EE+F=HA=+—H 2,000,000,000 200,000
Increase in authorised share HEINETE
capital % A 1,000,000,000 100,000
At 31st March, 2008 R-ZZBEENF=A=+—H 3,000,000,000 300,000
Issued and fully paid ?éfﬁ PNES N
At 1st April, 2006 = BEREMHA—H 1,306,906,460 130,691
Exercise of share options 1T{E R B AR A 100,000,000 10,000
RZET+F=HA=+—H
At 31st March, 2007 and 31st ;=T N\F
March, 2008 =A=+—H 1,406,906,460 140,691
Pursuant to the resolution passed in the Annual General BEARXAIR_ZEZLF/\A

—+thRA#HE TZﬂxﬁaﬁiﬁ’%@
B2 —THRFER ARFEE
iE 2 /11,000,000,000 A% & B% &
B0 1B EEKRMm B EER

Meeting of the Company held on 29th August, 2007, the
authorised share capital was increased from HK$200
million to HK$300 million by the creation of an additional
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each.

7K $1200,000,00078 7T & i =
300,000,000 7T
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For the year ended 315t March, 2008 # £~ FFENF=H =+ —HIFFZ

26. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 26. BRA(#E)
There was no movement in issued share capital during ZMEEERNB ZEITIRAIN & F
both years. (A B & o
RESERVES 27. f#fE
The Group NEE
The amount of the Group’s reserves and the movement NEBEAREEZHEERER
therein for the current and prior years are presented RESH 2 NI BRRE 42 %
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on ABE ZinEESEE R o
pages 42 and 43 of the financial statements.
The Company b N |
Capital  Convertible
Share Contributed redemption notes equity ~ Dividend  Retained
premium surplus reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
Er  THREE
hxa®  BUES  BERE 0 BERE  RERE  REEA g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT AT AT AT AT AT
At 31st March, 2006 RZFE/ E=f=1-H 386,900 244,734 515 — 16,336 127008 775,493
Exercise of share options ~ {T{ERBERIE 17840 - = = = = 17840
Loss for the year REEER - - - - - (1,081) (1,081)
Prior year final dividend paid B ZERHRE = - - - (16,336) - 16,336)
Interim dividend paid EfRERE - - - - - (17586) (17586)
Final dividend proposed HEZETLF
for the year ended ZB=1t-AL5E
31st March, 2007 LBRRER S = — — — 21,104 (21,104) =
At 31st March, 2007 RZEEtE=f=1-H 404,740 244,734 515 - 21,104 87237 758,330
Loss for the year REEER - - - - - (4.279) 4,279)
Equity component of EREE
convertible notes BEHH - - — 1,187 = = 1,187
Prior year final dividend paid B £ERERE — - - - (21,104) - (21,104)
Interim dividend paid BAPERE - - - - - (17586) (17586)
Final dividend proposed HE-ZZ)\E
for the year ended ZA=+-ALLEE
315t March, 2008 LRERERE - - - - 21,104 (21,104) -
At 31st March, 2008 R=ZENFZA=T-H 404740 244734 515 1,187 21,104 44268 716,548
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For the year ended 315t March, 2008 # % —FEFE/\4F = H =+ —H IFF/&F
RESERVES (Continued) 27. f#E#E)
The Company (Continued) KA ()
Notes: Hiaz -

(i) Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended)
and Bye-Laws of the Company, the contributed surplus
account of the Company is available for distribution.
However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend,
or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if

(a) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay
its liabilities as they become due;

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital and share premium accounts.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company’s reserves
available for distribution to shareholders were as follows:

i) BEARE-AN-FRAFE
(BBIEFT) R AR B 2 A F 4
8 BRAKRA DR TR
QAR TIIER TS E
BEWBHDIKERERELS
i

(a) ARETREHNIKHBEERD
BEEET M2 BT

b) ADREEFNZEEERAR-
EBTRARKA S EZ L
K e

EERAARTNAHETREZ EE
W -

2008 2007

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Contributed surplus B R % 244,734 244,734
Dividend reserve BB E 21,104 21,104
Retained earnings REBAF 44,268 87,237
310,106 353,075

The contributed surplus of the Company represented the
difference between the nominal value of the Company's
shares issued in exchange for the value of net assets of
the underlying subsidiaries acquired.

MINORITY INTERESTS

Investments in certain subsidiaries were in the form of
equity and loans from the Group and other shareholders
in accordance with respective percentages of equity
shareholding in these subsidiaries. Investments in the
form of loans were comparatively more significant
than those in the form of equity, so that the entire
amounts were treated as quasi-capital. Under these
circumstances, the aggregate of minority shareholders’
equity and loan investments were taken into account in
sharing the losses incurred by these subsidiaries. The
relevant amounts of minority shareholders’ shares of
losses of subsidiaries included in the advances from
minority shareholders are approximately HK$841,000
(2007: HK$16,772,000).

28.

ARBZBERBHRRLBEA
NEFTBEREAR Z2HEE
FERBETZARRRMDEEM
EEZZHE -

DR RER

RETHBARZRETIHAASE
B R EARRIZEERZSMB
RAIZBZRER DL ARAE R
BRz AL - MERFERIE
B2 B E S ERUBR AR AR
ZIRERKR  ALZBEHESR
BERK - EZEZEBRAT - ZF
MEBARZEBEERDERE 2R
AREFZEBERNR - BN
DHRR R FIE B IE D HAR R
ZEMBAREE . BERASELN
/841,000 (=TT £ F -
16,772,000 7C) °
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associate.

(a)

29. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 29. EEER
At the balance sheet date, the Group pledged a bank N EE R K& BA 249
deposit of approximately HK$20.4 million (2007: HK$19.6 20,400,000 7T 2 R1T 17 /(=
million) to secure general banking facilities granted to an T L+ 4 : 19,600,000 T ) K
HFRITAESRITZREREE
%_FEﬁ ﬁ%@ﬁj °©
DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 30. EEREEMS
Directors’ emoluments (a) EE=M<
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Fees we 240 240
Basic salaries, allowances and ~ EA#EH 4 - EAL KL
benefits in kind EWER 8,680 8,391
Retirement benefits scheme RIRFEFIET B
contributions R 315 303
Bonus paid ETEAL 9,103 6,183
18,338 15,117
Benefit from share options 1TIERIE I
exercised Z Wz — 4,560
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For the year ended 315t March, 2008 # £ ~FENF=H =1 —H ILFE

30. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EEM&E(ZE)
2008
Fees Other emoluments
He RtbBe
Basic salaries,  Retirement
allowances benefits
and benefits scheme Bonus 2008 2007
Name of director EEETH inkind contributions paid Total Total
E5Ee
BHR BAER
BEUER SR EREA @t gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FA7 FA7 &7 &1 &1 FET
Executive Director HTES
Mr. David LAM Kwing Chan* R - 2,112 95 2,080 4,281 3,538
Mr. Alvin LAM Kwing Wai WRELE - 2,371 47 2,215 4,633 3,991
Madam Rosita YUEN LAM KitWoo ~ B#f2#1 %+ - 1,300 53 2,080 3433 2,769
Mr. Laurent LAM Kwing Chee WRELE = 1,722 7 2,580 4,379 3,143
Mr. TSANG Siu Hung BhLE - 1175 43 148 1,366 1436
Independent non-executive Director BUFHTES
Mr. Leo CHAN Fai Yue REELE 80 - - - 80 80
Mr. John WONG Yik Chung REBSEE 80 - - - 80 80
Mr. Richard LAU Siu Sun LS e 80 - - - 80 40
Mr. Andrew LAM Ping Cheung WRERE - - - - - 40
2008 Total 240 8,680 315 9,103 18,338 15,117
2007 Total 240 8,391 303 6,183 15,117
@ Deceased on 12th June, 2008. o RZZEZENFENA+-HE -
Benefit from
share options exercised
Name of director EEER 1TIE SR 08 IR 2 W e
2008 2007
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Mr. Alvin LAM Kwing Wai MR IE — 1,360
Madam Rosita YUEN LAM Kit Woo SB#EZF %2+ = 1,600
Mr. Laurent LAM Kwing Chee AR SE A — 1,600
— 4,560

The amount was not charged to the consolidated

income statement.

EBERBERGEE WER A
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For the year ended 315t March, 2008 # % —~FEFE/\4F=H =+ —H ILF&F
30. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 30. EEREEME(E)
(Continued)
(b) Employees’ emoluments (b) EEME

The five highest paid employees during the year
included four (2007: four) directors, details of
whose remunerations are set out in note 30(a)
above. The remunerations paid to the five highest

REFERN - Bfl&xm H
ATBHEOZER(ZZTE
tFMEEE) HMe
ERE#HNHES0() -

paid employees are as follows: UikmEH AL 2B < a0
-
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FEIT
Basic salaries, allowances and ~ EZ&A¥ % 2K
benefits in kind BRI 8,718 9,032
Retirement benefits scheme RIRAEFET &
contributions R 307 342
Bonus paid BATEAD 11,090 6,803
20,115 16,177
The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals It 07 = B A = 2 B
were within the following bands: SARRIT

No. of persons

AT A
HK$ &7 2008 2007
2,500,001 - 3,000,000 — 2
3,000,001 - 3,500,000 2 1
3,500,001 - 4,000,000 — 2
4,000,001 - 4,500,000 2 =
4,500,001 - 5,000,000 1 —

5 5
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For the year ended 315t March, 2008 # % —FEE/\4F=H =+ —H IFF/&F
DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 31. HE HEKBAT

The Group did not have any material impact on disposal

of subsidiaries during the year.

During last year, the Group disposed of its entire interest
in Wuhan Golden Resources Rice Industry Limited and
Panjin Green Food Golden Resources International Grain

Company Limited.

The net assets of the subsidiaries disposed during last

WEREAZTE -

Ny
S o
I

RE BN A E Z M 2 B AR

AEENEFEHE MHRE
SRAEARAANBBEER
mETRERBYERARZE2H

KoEFLF=A=+—ALT

year ended 31st March, 2007 were as follows: ELHE MEME AT EERE
I
2007
HK$'000
FET
NET ASSETS DISPOSED OF e, Mz EEFE
Property, plant and equipment VI - REHEE R 14,011
Inventories T8 1,060
Trade debtors EWE 5 BRTE 778
Other debtors, deposits and prepayments EfbpeUkERTE « e MBI I8 1,777
Cash and cash equivalents RE MRS ERE 1,971
Trade creditors ERE 58RE (2,900)
Other creditors and accruals H A pERARTE R B R 2 (5,353)
Bank loans IRITER (14,679)
(3,335)
Exchange gain realized BIER 2 EL & (2,310)
Write-back of impairment loss recognised on A EHNE A G EEIEE Y
assets upon disposal of subsidiaries BHERBEEE 9,101
Net consideration REBEFEE 3,456
Satisfied by: ATRFN AT
Cash B 3,903
Less: Expenses related to disposal JR M EREEA (447)
Net cash consideration R REFHE 3,456
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HE MHEEEAZBRESRAFE
Net cash consideration ReREFHE 3,456
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of & Mz Re RAEEE (1,971)

1,485
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For the year ended 315t March, 2008 #% £ — FFNFE=H=—+—H I FF

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group entered into the following
transactions with the associates:

Mg

Trade purchases e

\

32.

REALTRS

AREFER - ANEEERB LSRR
TR

2008 2007
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TAET
258,118 206,572

The trade purchases were carried out in the ordinary
course of business and at prices determined by reference
to prevailing market price.

Remuneration for key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management personnel during the year is as follows:

ZERENEAEXBBEANE
TRERXSZETN2R-—ENMH
B -

FTEEBEASNHMH

EZREMEIEERAEBNEE
NEVFBE T

THE GROUP
rEE

2008 2007
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Short-term employee benefits EHREET 23,740 17,470
Post-employment employee benefits BIKEB BT 433 383
24,173 17,853
Benefit from share options exercised TR RRE AR 2 s — 4,560

The remuneration of directors and key management
personnel is determined or proposed by the remuneration
committee having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

During the year, the Group rented a property owned by a
landlord in which the Director of the Company, Mr. Alvin
LAM Kwing Wai, had a beneficial interest. Total rental
expenses incurred for the year amounted to HK$960,000
(2007: HK$960,000).

EERTREEABNHMNEH
MEEE2EEMNALHRIRR
MZBPIRETE S

RAEEAN - NREBRARARE
ENMELEER—BHEEAE
mESZME - AFEZHEX
H 42 %8 5 960,000 L(ZEF
+4 : 960,000 7T) °
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W 55 e 3% Bt EE
For the year ended 315t March, 2008 # £ ~FEENF=H =1 —H ILFE
32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 32. BEAXLRB (&)
Details of balances with associates at the balance sheet NEEHEBE N NFAB o IE
date are set out in note 15. FHIEEGARMFES o
In addition to the above, the Group also provided AN - ANEBE IR AL DT A
guarantees to banks in respect of banking facilities WITHERE MIBMEIER 5315
granted to associates as set out in note 33(c). FI MY EE 33(c) ©
33. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 33. AERRAEE
At the balance sheet date, the commitments and REER  REEVKHRERIED
contingent liabilities not provided for in the financial M AENSRBENT ¢
statements are as follows:
(a) Contracted capital commitments (a) BEEHNZERMERIE
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
AES FI/N|
2008 2007 2008 2007

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
TET TAET FTET TAET

Acquisition of BAYE
property, plant and R 5 1 25
equipment B 65 = - —

Capital contribution for A&—JAA] HERE
an available-for-sale ZE®
investment wA 20,400 20,400 — —

20,465 20,400 — _

Golden Resources Annual Report 107
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For the year ended 315t March, 2008 # F = FEENFE=H=-——H ILFF/E

33. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(Continued)

(b)

Operating lease commitments
The Group as lessee
At the balance sheet date, the Group had

commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases which fall

33. RERIAREE(E)

(b) EEBAAE
EEEEBERBA
REER AEBEZTH

BHEEMOR T HE
AELNTZARREES

due as follows: S
THE GROUP
AEE
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Within one year —FR 1,855 2,013
In the second to fifth years FE_ZERF

inclusive (EEMEREEAN) 369 450
2,224 2,463

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable
by the Group in respect of rented premises. Leases
are negotiated for an average term of 2 years with
fixed rentals.

108  Golden Resources Annual Report
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For the year ended 315t March, 2008 # % —FEE/\4F=H =+ —HIFF/&F
33. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 33. AERJAEEE)
(Continued)
(b) Operating lease commitments (Continued) (b) BEHQYRIEE)
The Group as lessor KEEFESDHHAN
Property rental income earned during the year FRNz2HMEBRSKAAE
was HK$1,123,000 (2007: HK$1,689,000). The 1,123,000 T(Z 2 &F £
properties rented out have committed tenants for F 1 1,689,000/% JT ) ° #%
the next 2 years. EHEMEERERERN
HEMFHEME -
At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted NEER NEFBBEBP
with tenants under the non-cancellable leases for SN Z T BEBORNT
the following future minimum lease payments: HIHAE 2 R R XK & I
AT
THE GROUP
AEE
2008 2007
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
Within one year —FA 1,048 744
In the second to fifth years FE_ZFERF
inclusive (ERMFEBEERN) 590 110
1,638 854
The Company did not have any lease commitments REEH » AR A EE
at the balance sheet date. AT AE £ AHE o

109
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For the year ended 315t March, 2008 # %~ ZFEZNFE=H =1 —HIFFE

33. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(Continued)

(c) Contingent liabilities and financial guarantees

issued

33. RERIAREE(E)

(c)

FREBERERZMBER

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
TEE AT
2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Guarantees given in =BG
respect of banking ESRITRE
facilities made (k7=
available to: ER
— subsidiaries — B AR - — 160,686 180,721
— associates — BN A 176,965 154,996 156,550 135,496
176,965 154,996 317,236 316,217
At the balance sheet date, the Group’s subsidiaries REER REBZKHB
had not utilised any of the banking facilities RAEW R BEBAEMAR
guaranteed by the Company. The extent of RIFTERZBITRER

guaranteed banking facilities utilised by the

associates as at 31st March, 2008 amounted
to approximately HK$50,601,000 (2007:

HK$57,286,000).

At the balance sheet date, the Directors did not

consider it probable that a claim would be made

against the Group under any of the guarantees

granted by the Group.

The Group has not recognised any deferred income

in respect of the financial guarantee contracts

granted as the Directors consider that the fair

values of the financial guarantee contract is not

significant.

i

E-RZZEZENF = A
=t+—H BEQFEH
RAZERIETHEREELN
£50,601,0008 (=2 F
+4F : 57,286,000/%%7T) °

A

REEB  BEFEALTRAR
BEMBRBEZENEEM
REzZERMAAEER
182 FIRE °

AEEHRERERME
2 ERZ EAELER
A REER /B BER
ZEHNZAFELTE

Ht

%o
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For the year ended 31st March, 2008 # %~ FF/NF=H=—+—H I FF
34. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 34. BIEFIEE
THE GROUP
AEH
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Retirement benefits schemes EIREAIETE

contributions R 1,930 1,878
Less: Forfeited contributions Ji - BRI FR (34) (114)
1,896 1,764
The Group operates a defined contribution retirement AEBZE —BRERZERKET

benefits scheme (the “Defined Contribution Scheme”)
which is registered under the Occupational Retirement
Scheme Ordinance (the "ORSO Scheme”) and a
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
established under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance in December, 2000. The assets of these
schemes are held separately from those of the Group
in funds under the control of an independent trustee.
Employees who are members of the ORSO Scheme prior
to the establishment of the MPF Scheme were offered a
choice of staying within the ORSO Scheme or switching
to the MPF Scheme, whereas, all new employees joining
the Group on or after 1st December, 2000 are required to
join the MPF Scheme.

Under the ORSO Scheme, the Group and its employees
participating in the scheme are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at rates specified in the
rules. Where there are employees who leave the ORSO
scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions, the
contributions payable by the Group are reduced by the
amount of forfeited contributions.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to
the MPF Scheme at rates specified in the rules. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF
Scheme is to make the required contributions under the
scheme. Except for voluntary contribution, no forfeited
contribution under this scheme is available to reduce the
contribution payable in future years.

S5 B (T B SRR B R B) 1) X
M2 REHFRKENEE(E
BHRZFE ] ZR_FTE
FHoARERERESE
R B B SZ 58 I M A AR 2 5T 8 ([ 58
BEEtE)) ZFREZEED
REALABILERAZNZE
TEE - RNBESFEACER
ERNFHEIKB Z BB AEER
BB R EIHE R INAR
BEFE - AR _FTTF
TZA-HHZEMAREERZ
MEEASMAREEFE -

RIBBERARAE  AEER2
H5H8 2 (B B 9 /A AT Bl 1G4
EZHEREZBELHER - R
BERNBRESEIHERINELR
FRAEE - AIAKERREN
ZBFRAG AT R 208 Wz SRR A

REERESTE  BERERA
et R IE E 2 K pLats
ERFEIS BEH K - AEEFL
miESTEImMARE LW —FE
RIRIEZ AT EEL TR E 2 #
Ko BB RMEERIN - REBEAG

2 BEIYEEMAOLKZ M}
FRER D AR D R AR PEAT 2 5K
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For the year ended 315t March, 2008 # % — EENFE=H =+ —HILFF
34. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES (Continued) 34. RAEFRFEIE)
The retirement benefits schemes contributions arising B Rt EI B EtEIELE
from the ORSO Scheme and the MPF Scheme charged ZEREAE 2 ST AU S =
to the income statement represent contributions payable A Jh AN E BIR s 2SR FE E L =X
to the schemes by the Group at rates specified in the BEAFETEIZ MK o
rules of the schemes.
At the balance sheet date, there are no significant NEER HEBEREEZENRE
forfeited contributions, which arose upon employees FEt &4 08 I 2 & = 3K E015
leaving the retirement benefits scheme and which are T AT F BARAR 2R A (i 20 2 BRRE I
available to reduce the contributions payable by the TEEE o
Group in future years.
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 35. SRIAMEREBEEBX
POLICIES
The Group’s major financial instruments include available- AEEFEZEMTABETH
for-sale investments, financial assets at fair value through ERE  REZRERRATFEERE
profit or loss, trade and other receivables and trade and JERMEBE MBWESERLHE
other payables. Details of these financial instruments are i JE UG GRIE LA K JES B 5 BR 7R &
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with HitpENFIE - ZES T A
these financial instruments and the policies on how to HBECORIEEM T IRE - L
mitigate these risks are set out below. The Management ZemTEBBEZER - AL
manages and monitors these exposures closely to ensure RZERBZBERENR T - &
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and BEZXTHEREMERZER
effective manner. M - DAREIRBE K2 B & A S0 R ER
HE N o
Currency risk management E¥RRER
The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency REBUINEBBENEBEEN
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at BENRBREAHZEmENT -
the reporting date are as follows:
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
rEH AATF
2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FHET
Assets BE
Denominated in Renminbi AN R BB 174,527 197,711 = —
Liabilities BfE
Denominated in Renminbi IAA R BB 13,214 24,214 = =
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For the year ended 31st March, 2008 # %

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the effects of fluctuation
in Renminbi. The following table details the Group’s
sensitivity to a 5% increase and decrease in Renminbi
against the Hong Kong dollar. 5% is the sensitivity
rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’'s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary assets and liabilities and adjusts their
translation at the year end for a 5% change in foreign
currency rates. The sensitivity analysis includes external
loans as well as loans to foreign operations within
the Group where the denomination of the loan is in a
currency other than the currency of the lender or the
borrower.

»»»»»»»

CBENE=H=+F

35.

-HIEFE

TRAREERRERRE)

BRED T

AEEXTZEHARBE 2EERE
Be TRETAKBEHARE
THEREZBE5% 2 BURE D &
Bob%mMEREEABRNE
G IMNE R ATE R 2 BURE L
T UKRREEEHEXRAEA
BEB L  HRESNTERE
BEUINENNENHBEERE
& - WHZ 5% K HME B B) 39 B 1R
FRFENBRE - FRESITE
RYEIINRAEEZBINEBE
R MERZEELERETHK
EHZERER -

Increase/decrease in equity
for the year

AEEER2EM, B
2008 2007
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Impact of Renminbi AR 28 8,066 8,675
Capital risk management EXEBRER

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategies remain unchanged from prior year.
The capital structure of the Group consists of equity
attributable to equity holders of the Company comprising
issued share capital, share premium and reserves.

The Group had cash balance of HK$221 million and no
outstanding bank loans except for convertible notes
amounted to HK$86 million as at 31 March 2008.

AEEZERNEEEREREL
BEETE BERASEBTEQ
AR B EL R THRRES
o AEEERBRE EFE
RIETE - REENERREER
BARRBCREIG R 2 BT
BN~ B 8 R B IR

AEEBR_ZEZENFE=ZA
ST HRBEREEHNA
221,000,000/ 7t * BR Al AR =
& %) 586,000,000/ T b - I
MOREBRITER ©




35.

36.

Notes to the Financial Statements

ﬁz%%&%‘%ﬂﬁ“aﬂ‘i

For the year ended 315t March, 2008 # % — 32/ 4F

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk management

The Group’'s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables and loan receivables. The exposure
to the credit risk is closely monitored on an ongoing
basis by established credit polices. There is no significant
credit risk within the Group.

To mitigate counterparty risk, the Group enters into
derivative contracts only with sound financial institutions
with strong investment-grade credit ratings, limits
exposure to each financial institution and monitors
each rating regularly. The Group places time deposits
and bank balances with banks of high credit ratings
in Hong Kong and sets exposure limits to each single
financial institution. Other than concentration of credit
risk on amount due from associates, the Group has
no other significant concentration of credit risk as
relevant exposures are well diversified over a number of
counterparties.

Financial instruments price risk management

The Group’s financial instruments price risk is primarily
attributable to available-for-sale investments, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss and derivative
financial instruments. The Management manages this
exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risk profiles.

Liquidity risk management

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’'s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to
conform with current year’s presentation.

114 = Golden Resources As
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TREREE R RERRE)

FERBRER

rEBEZEERREEY REK
BHREMBRBAURER - K&
BEETENEERRAFEN
wHEERREDETOREE -

it REBVESKZEER

B -
BREXSHERZAR K%

EEenBEBEAREELIR
BEENR s emMBEIT LT
G4 WARFENRS S BEER]
AR zERREEIRERE K
ZEEFR - NEB 2 EBFER
RRITHEEDERREBEEZHEE
BROHIRIT - WH S EHE
FREARZ 2B LR - BRTE
H {5 B B B A B LS 8 N I SR IE
G REBETEEMBERNEES
WiEERR EFERREZE
HMAREETRSH °

TRIAERERER

AEECseMIABRRAREE
BRAHERE  RERKRER
FEREZEREERITESR
TA - BERENARIZTREPRK
FHREHRA NI B

RBESABER

REBRBECAR  NEEYH
BehkFRARSETER I
REHAERNERBRERHZK
FoURARERLEXBIRHEE
S RARESRERD 2FE -
EREERRTEEZHAEB
M RN A EREL -

LEEF
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Schedule of Investment Properties

BE W)

At 315t March, 2008 A~ EE/FE=H=4—H

Particulars of investment properties are as follows:

Location Term

b:uh0ld =31

Room 1431, 1432, 1822, 1823, 1922 and Long lease
Store Room No. 1 on 18/F Star House, KHIE#
No. 3 Salisbury Road, Tsimshatsui,

Kowloon, Hong Kong

BEANERSBERTEFEIR
B t171431-1432+1822-1823"
1922F K18 1REME

Unit B, 9/F Gitic Plaza Office Tower A, Medium-term lease
No. 339 Huanshi Road East, Guangzhou, FREIEZZ
Guangdong Province, PRC

Fh B B B B M T IR T SR BE 3395
BEREIRAKEARIEBE

REMEFERMT :

Usage
JizE=S

Commercial

[CES

Commercial

CES

Golden Resources Annual Report

Percentage held
by the Group
rEERFEZADL

100%

100%
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Group Financial Summary

5 1 B B

At 315t March, 2008 Jit = EENE=H=—+—H

Year ended 31st March,
HE=A=t—HLEFE

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
RESULTS £ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

FET FAETL FET FET FET

As restated As restated As restated As restated

KLE| L E| Fedegl KL E|
Turnover e 652,485 685,555 591,990 529,542 556,864
Profit before taxation B AR 43,566 15,623 112,367 104,894 24,423
Taxation 18 (10,031) (19,155) (21,376) (15,980) (15,520)
Profit/(loss) for the year REZHER/(EE) 33,535 (3,532) 90,991 88,914 8,903
Attributable to: JEIEAREEEA, (FE) :
Shareholders of the NG|

Company el 40,110 (6,280) 88,998 77078 8,722

Minority interests DR RS (6,575) 2,748 1,993 11,836 181

33,535 (3,532) 90,991 88,914 8,903
Dividends sy 32,468 32,666 32,672 38,690 38,690

As at 31st March,
R=B=t+-H

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES SERERE HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

FET FET FET FET FET
Total assets BERAT 945,112 969,571 1,031,271 1,108,671 1,158,855
Total liabilities BELER (76,534)  (122,389) (101,177 (89,362)  (148,143)
Minority interests DR R (8,515) (9,402) (12,268) (12,685) (13,057)
Shareholders’ equity RS 860,063 837780 917826 1,006,624 997,655
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